
AGENDA for the Joint SPECIAL Meeting of the 

Sierra County Board of Education 

and the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 

February 02, 2023 

4:00pm - Work Session 

Loyalton: Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton, CA 96118 

Patty Hall, Area 1 - phall@spjusd.org 

Annie Tipton, Vice President, Area 2 - atipton@spjusd.org 

Christina Potter, Area 3 - cpotter@spjusd.org 

Kelly Champion, President, Area 4 - kchampion@spjusd.org 

Dorie Gayner, Clerk, Area 5 - dgayner@spjusd.org 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public meetings in 

response to the COVlD-19 pandemic, the Governing Board of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District will suspend the Brown Act teleconferencing posting requirements for any Board members that 

choose to participate via Zoom videoconferencing. 

Zoom: bttps://us02web.zoom.us/j/843035929 I 2 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 Webinar ID: 843 0359 2912 

(Press *6 to unmute) 

Any individual who requires disabilily-related accommodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in 

the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made available al Sierra Counly 

Office of Education, Room 3, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the online agenda at 

http://www.sierracounlyojficeofeducation.org (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. FLAG SALUTE

E. PUBLIC COMMENT

Special Meeting Agenda Items only, please.
This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board on any item of interest that is

within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board listed on this agenda. Three (3) minutes may be allotted to

each speaker and a maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.

F. WORK SESSION

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

BATCH FROM JANUARY JOm MEETING 

a. 3250-Transportation Fees

I. Board Policy, revisionsl\A 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisionsl\A 

b. 3260-Fees and Charges

I. Administrative Regulation, revisionsl\A 

c. 3460-Financial Reports and Accountability

I. Board Policy, revisionsl\A 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisionsl\A 

Page I of2 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Special Meeting Agenda- February 02, 2023 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84303592912


d. 3515-Campus Security

I. Board Policy, revisions/\/\ 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions/\/\ 

e. 3516.2-Bomb Threats

I. Adm inislralivtl Rtlgulaliu11, revisium,·/V\

f. 3540-Transportation

1. Board Policy, revisions/\/\ 

g. 9220-Governing Board Elections

1. Board Bylaw, revisions/\/\ 

h. 9223-Filling Vacancies

1. Board Bylaw, revisions/\/\ 

1. 9323-Meeting Conduct

I. Board Bylaw, revisions/\/\ 

NEW BATCH FOR FEBRUARY 14
TH 

MEETING 

J. 0430-Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education

1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

k. 0450-Comprehensive Safety Plan

1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

I. 0460-Local Control and Accountability Plan

I. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

m. 5131. 7-Weapons and Dangerous Instruments

1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

n. 5141.3-Health Examinations

1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

o. 5142-Safety

1. Board Policy, revisions**

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

p. 6164.4-Identification and Evaluation oflndividuals for Special Education

1. Administrative Regulation, revisions**

G. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. The next Regular Joint Board Meeting will be held on February 14, 2023, at Downieville

School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 at 6:00pm. If needed, Closed Session may

be held before the Regular session beginning at 5:00pm. Zoom videoconferencing may

be available for the public.

H. ADJOURN

** enclosed 

* handout

M prior meeting handout

James Berardi, Superintendent 

Page 2 of2 
SCOE & SP JUSD Joint Special Meeting Agenda - February 02, 2023 



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – February 14, 2023 
 

 

Board Policy 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) requiring the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
to make publicly available the special education funding each local educational agency (LEA) generates for 
their Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), and for the SELPA, to report to member LEA's the amount 
of funding each LEA generates for the SELPA. 

 
Administrative Regulation 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which extends the timeline for developing an 
annual assurances support plan to July 1, 2027. A template for the annual assurances support plan will be 
developed by CDE by July 1, 2026. Additional minor revisions as necessary for clarity. 

 
 
 

Board Policy 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan 
Policy updated to clarify language related to approval of the tactical response plan and add material regarding 
the district's requirement to provide data to the California Department of Education pertaining to lockdown 
or multi-option response drills conducted at district schools. 

 
Administrative Regulation 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires, starting with the 2023-24 school 
year, districts to include in the annual notification to parents/guardians information related to the safe storage 
of firearms, and for certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as 
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular 
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or 
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat 
to law enforcement. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1352, 2021) which authorizes 
districts to request the Military Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration 
Center (Cal-CSIC), to perform an independent security assessment of the district or an individual district 
school and NEW LAW (AB 2355, 2022) which requires districts that experience a cyberattack, which 
impacts more than 500 students or personnel, to report the cyberattack to Cal-CSIC. Additionally, regulation 
updated to include in the optional list of comprehensive safety plan components (1) strategies aimed at 
preventing potential incidents involving crime and violence on school campuses, (2) provision of safety 
materials and emergency communications in language(s) understandable to parents/guardians, (3) procedures 
for the early identification and threat assessment of, and appropriate response to, suspicious and/or 
threatening digital media content, (4) district policy and/or plan related to pandemics, (5) communication 
with parents/guardians regarding unification plans and necessity of cooperating with first responders, and (6) 
continuity of operations procedures to ensure that the district's essential functions are not disrupted during an 
emergency, to the extent possible. 

 
 
 

Board Policy 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which states, by January 31, 2025, an Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE) shall 
completed by districts which are identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) as needing an 
improvement plan. Additionally, policy is updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) requiring the LCAP 
parent advisory committee to include at least a parent/guardian of currently enrolled students with disabilities. 
Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 997, 2022) which requires, beginning July 1, 2024, districts 
serving middle or high school students to include two students as full members of the existing parent advisory 
committee or establish a student advisory committee to provide advice to the Board and the Superintendent 
or designee. 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 



Page 2 of 3 

Administrative Regulation 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022), which states Beginning July 1, 2025, if the 
district is identified by State Board of Education (SBE) as needing an improvement plan related to 
improvements in services for students with disabilities, the Board shall adopt, and update on an annual 
basis, an Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum, based on the template adopted by 
SBE. 

 
 
 

Board Policy 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 
Policy updated to (1) expand the concept of district provided transportation, (2) reflect NEW LAW (SB 
906, 2022) which requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials 
such as Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on 
a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are 
alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or 
perceived threat to law enforcement, (3) move language regarding student suspension and expulsion in 
order to keep related content together, and (4) add language regarding staff training to align with staff 
responsibilities to report potential homicidal acts. Regulation also updated to add headings for the Options 
regarding tear gas or tear gas weapons, and to emphasize that for districts that allow students to bring tear 
gas of tear gas weapons to school, the student needs to either be accompanied by, or have the written 
consent, of a parent/guardian. 

 
Administrative Regulation 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 

Regulation updated to expand the list of prohibited weapons and dangerous instruments to include 
additional items that are listed in law. 

 
 
 

Administrative Regulation 5141.3 - Health Examinations 
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2329) which authorizes districts to enter into a 
memorandum of understanding with a nonprofit eye examination provider to provide eye examinations 
and eyeglasses to students at a school site. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 97) which 
requires that beginning on or after January 1, 2023, districts make Type 1 diabetes materials developed by 
CDE available to parents/guardians when student is first enrolled in elementary school or as part of certain 
notifications. The first note was changed to a Cautionary Note and updated to clarify that the obligation to 
perform specified mandated activities is relieved any year that the Budget Act does not provide 
reimbursement. 

 
 
 
Board Policy 5142 - Safety 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (P.L. 117-159) which requires the creation of a Federal 
Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices to serve as a federal resource to identify 
and publish online practices and recommendations to improve school safety, and include that the district 
regularly review current guidance regarding cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate 
recommended practices into the district's processes and procedures related to the protection of the district's 
network infrastructure and the monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media 
content. 

 
Administrative Regulation 5142 - Safety 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires certificated and classified 
employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing Board members, whose duties bring 
the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as 
part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a 
homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement, and add language 
regarding staff responsibilities and training to align with requirement to report potential homicidal acts. 



Page 3 of 3 

Regulation also updated to add language that anyone who receives or learns of a health or safety threat 
related to school or a school activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district administrator, 
reflect NEW LAW (AB 2028, 2022) which authorizes the Board of an elementary, intermediate, junior 
high, or high school to assist local law enforcement, nonprofit associations or organizations such as the 
Girls Scouts, Boys Scouts, and parent-teacher associations, and public agencies that provide safety 
instruction related to using electric, motorized, or nonmotorized bicycles and scooters, to provide such 
safety instruction to district students, and NEW LAW (AB 1946, 2022) which requires the Department of 
the California Highway Patrol to develop, and post on its web site, by September 1, 2023, statewide safety 
and training programs based on evidence- based practices for users of electric bicycles, including general 
riding safety, emergency maneuver skills, rules of the road, and laws pertaining to electric bicycles. 

 
 
 
Administrative Regulation 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 188, 2022), requiring each district to designate a main point 
of contact for coordinating and completing the transition of a child and family from Part C (Early 
Intervention Program for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities) to Part B (Assistance for Children with 
Disabilities) of IDEA. 





Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Policy 0430: Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56195.1, school districts and county offices of 
education (COE) are required to form geographical regions, known as Special Education Local Plan 
Areas (SELPAs), of sufficient size and scope to administer a local plan and the allocation of funds 
for all the special education service needs of the children residing within the boundaries of the 
region. Districts may join together or with a COE to form a SELPA, or a single district may form 
its own SELPA. Education Code 56195.1 prohibits a district from creating a single-district SELPA 
until July 1, 2024. 

 
Each SELPA is required to develop and administer a local plan describing how it will provide 
special education services. Pursuant to Education Code 56195.5, the Governing Board has 
authority, consistent with the SELPA plan, over the programs it directly maintains. 

 
The Governing BoardThe Board of Education recognizes its obligation to provide a free appropriate 
public education to all individuals with disabilities, aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district. 
 
In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall serve as a Special Education 
Local Plan Area (SELPA) pursuant to Education Code 56195.1. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop a local plan for the education of individuals with disabilities 
residing in the district. The plan shall be approved by the Board and submitted to the county office of 
education and the Superintendent of Public Instruction.   (SPI). (Education Code 56195.1, 56195.3) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 56836.148, as amended by AB 181 (Chapter 52, Statutes of 2022), 
requires the SPI to make publicly available the special education funding each local educational 
agency (LEA) generates for their SELPA, and for the SELPA, within thirty days of receiving their 
apportionment to report the amount of funding each LEA generates to member LEAs. 
 

Each year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide to the Board any data and/or information 
regarding the special education funding generated by the district as supplied by the SPI and the SELPA in 
accordance with Education Code 56836.148. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56195.9, the local plan must be reviewed by the SELPA at 
least once every three years. The budget plan, service plan, and annual assurances support plan must be 
reviewed annually, pursuant to Education Code 56205; see the accompanying administrative 
regulation. 
 

The local plan shall be reviewed at least once every three years and updated as needed to ensure the 
information contained in the plan remains relevant and accurate.  The local plan shall be updated 
cooperatively by a committee of representatives of special and regular education teachers and 
administrators selected by the groups they represent and with participation by parent/guardian 
members of the community advisory committee, or parents/guardians selected by the community 
advisory committee, to ensure adequate and effective participation and communication.  (Education 
Code 56195.9) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56195.7, a single-district SELPA is mandated to adopt a 
written procedure for the ongoing review of programs and a mechanism for correcting any 
identified problem. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district and/or SELPA 
practice. 
 

Special education programs and services shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis.  The results of such 
evaluations shall be used to identify and correct any program deficiencies. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: December 11, 2007 
revised: July 14, 2020 
revised: February 14, 2023 



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Regulation 0430: Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education 

 

 
Definitions 
 
Free appropriate public education (FAPE) means special education and related services that are provided 
at public expense, under public supervision and direction, and without charge; meet the standards of 
the California Department of Education, including the requirements of 34 CFR 300.1-300.818; include 
appropriate preschool, elementary school, or secondary school education for individuals between the ages 
of 3 and 21; and are provided in conformity with an individualized education program (IEP) that meets 
the requirements of 34 CFR 300.320-300.324.  (Education Code 56040; 34 CFR 300.17, 300.101, 
300.104) 
 
Least restrictive environment means that, to the maximum extent appropriate, students with disabilities, 
including individuals in public or private institutions or other care facilities, be educated with individuals 
who are nondisabled, including the provision of nonacademic and extracurricular services and 
activities.  Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of students with disabilities from the 
regular educational environment occurs only if the nature or severity of the disability is such that 
education in the regular classes with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved 
satisfactorily.  (Education Code 56040.1; 34 CFR 300.107, 300.114, 300.117) 
 
Elements of the Local Plan 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 56205 and 56206 detail the elements that must be included in 
the local plan developed by the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), including a 
requirement that the plan contain assurances of general compliance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794), the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
(20 USC 1400-1482), and the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12101-12213). 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 56122, the California Department of Education (CDE) has developed 
templates for plan development, which are available on its web site. 
 

The local plan developed by the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) shall include, but not be 
limited to:  (Education Code 56122, 56205, 56206) 
 

1. Policies, procedures, and programs, that are consistent with state laws, regulations, and policies 
and 20 USC 1412(a), 20 USC 1413(a)(1), and 34 CFR 300.201 governing the following: 

 
a. Free appropriate public education 

 
b. Full educational opportunity 

 
c. Child find and referral 

 
d. Individualized education programs, including development, implementation, review, 

and revision 
 

e. Least restrictive environment 
 

f. Procedural safeguards 
 

g. Annual and triennial assessments 
 



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

h. Confidentiality 
 

i. Transition from the Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities programs pursuant to 20 
USC 1431 to the preschool program 
 

j. Children in private schools 
 

k. Compliance assurances, including general compliance with the federal Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (20 USC 1400-1482), Section 504 of the federal 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990 (42 USC 12101-12213), related federal regulations, and Education Code 
56000-56865 
 

l. A description of the governance and administration of the local plan in accordance with 
Education Code 56205(a)(12) 
 

m. Personnel qualification to ensure that personnel, including special education teachers 
and personnel and paraprofessionals are appropriately and adequately prepared and 
trained in accordance with Education Code 56058 and 56070 and 20 USC 1412(a)(14) 
and 1413(a)(3) 
 

n. Performance goals and indicators 
 

o. Participation in state and districtwide assessments, including assessments described in 
20 USC 6301 et seq. and alternate assessments in accordance with 20 USC 
1412(a)(16), and reports relating to assessments 
 

p. Supplementation of state, local, and other federal funds, including nonsupplantation of 
funds 
 

q. Maintenance of financial effort 
 

r. Opportunities for public participation before adoption of policies and procedures 
 

s. Suspension and expulsion rates 
 

t. Access to instructional materials by blind individuals with exceptional needs and others 
with print disabilities in accordance with 20 USC 1412(a)(23) 
 

u. Overidentification and disproportionate representation by race and ethnicity of children 
as individuals with exceptional needs, including children with disabilities with a 
particular impairment described in 20 USC 1401 and 1412(a)(24) 
 

v. Prohibition of mandatory medication use pursuant to Education Code 56040.5 and 20 
USC 1412(a)(25) 

 
2. An annual budget plan, including descriptions of the SELPA's allocation plan in accordance with 

Education Code 56836-56845, all revenues by revenue source received by the SELPA specifically 
for the purpose of special education, a breakdown of the distribution of funds to each local 
educational agency (LEA) within the SELPA, projected total special education expenditures by 
each LEA, projected total expenditures by the SELPA and the LEAs within the SELPA, projected 
funding to be received specifically for regionalized operations, and a breakdown of projected 
SELPA operating expenditures 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 
3. An annual budget plan, including descriptions of the SELPA's allocation plan in accordance with 

Education Code 56836-56845, all revenues by revenue source received by the SELPA specifically 
for the purpose of special education, a breakdown of the distribution of funds to each local 
educational agency (LEA) within the SELPA, projected total special education expenditures by 
each LEA, projected total expenditures by the SELPA and the LEAs within the SELPA, projected 
funding to be received specifically for regionalized operations, and a breakdown of projected 
SELPA operating expenditures 
 

4. An annual service plan, describing the services to be provided by each LEA, regardless of whether 
the LEA participates in the local plan, including the nature of the services and the physical 
location at which the services will be provided. This description shall demonstrate that all 
individuals with exceptional needs shall have access to services and instruction appropriate to 
meet their needs as specified in their individualized education programs. 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56205 and 56122, the local plan must include an 
annual assurances support plan to demonstrate how the SELPA and its participating agencies are 
coordinating to assure effective outcomes for students with disabilities. As amended by AB 181 (Ch. 
52, Statutes of 2022), Education Code 56122 extends the timeline for developing an annual assurances 
support plan to July 1, 2027. A template for the annual assurances support plan will be developed 
by CDE by July 1, 2026. 
 

5. Beginning July 1, 20232027, an annual assurances support plan to demonstrate how the SELPA 
and its participating agencies are coordinating for purposes of assuring effective outcomes for 
students with disabilities, including a description of: 
 

a. SupportHow the governing board of the SELPA will supportprovide to participating 
agencies in achieving the goals, actions, and services identified in their local control 
and accountability plans 

 
b. The ways in whichHow the governing board of the SELPA will connect participating 

agencies in need of technical assistance to the statewide system of support 
 

c. The services, technical assistance, and support the governing board of the SELPA will 
provide to meet the required policies, procedures, and programs specified in Education 
Code 56205 
 

6. A description of programs for early childhood special education from birth through five years of 
age 

 
7. A description of the method by which members of the public, including parents/guardians of 

individuals with disabilitiesexceptional needs who are receiving services under the plan, may 
address questions or concerns pursuant to Education Code 56205 

 
8. A description of a dispute resolution process, including mediation and arbitration to resolve 

disputes over the distribution of funding, the responsibility for service provision, and the other 
governance activities specified within the local plan 

 
9. Verification that the plan has been reviewed by the community advisory committee in 

accordance with Education Code 56205 and that the committee had at least 30 days to conduct 
this review before submission of the local plan to CDE 

 
10. A description of the process being utilized to refer students for special education instruction 

pursuant to Education Code 56303 
 

11. A description of the process being utilized to oversee and evaluate placements in nonpublic, 
nonsectarian schools, the method of ensuring that all requirements of each student's IEP are being 



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

met, and a method for evaluating whether the student is making appropriate educational 
progress 

 
12. A description of how specialized equipment and services will be distributed within the local 

plan area in a manner that minimizes the necessity to serve students in isolated sites and 
maximizes the opportunities to serve students in the least restrictive environment 
 

The local plan, annual budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan shall be 
written in language that is understandable to the general public.  They shall be adopted at a public hearing 
of the SELPA, for which notice of the hearing shall be posted in each school in the SELPA at least 15 
days before the hearing.  (Education Code 56205) 
 
Availability of the Plan 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall post on the district's web site the approved local plan, annual 
budget plan, annual service plan, and annual assurances support plan and any updates or revisions to the 
plans.  A complete copy of the local plan, annual budget plan, annual service plan, annual assurances 
support plan, and policies and procedures shall be held on file in the district office and shall be accessible 
to any interested party.  (Education Code 56205.5) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: July 14, 2020 
revised: February 14, 2023 



Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Policy 0450: Comprehensive Safety Plan 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 32280-32289.5, districts are responsible for ensuring 
that a comprehensive safety plan with specified components is in place for each district school. As 
required by Education Code 32282 and 32288, the California Department of Education (CDE) has 
posted on its web site a compliance checklist for developing comprehensive safety plans and best 
practices for reviewing and approving the plans. 
Comprehensive safety plans are reviewed through the annual audits required by Education Code 
41020 to ensure that they are updated and approved by March 1 of each year. 

 
The Governing BoardThe Board of Education recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe 
and secure campus where they are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully 
committed to maximizing school safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes 
strategies for violence prevention and high expectations for student conduct, responsible behavior, 
and respect for others. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 32281 and 32286, each school is required to adopt a 
comprehensive safety plan (Option 1 below). However, districts with an average daily attendance 
(ADA) of 2,500 or less are authorized by Education Code 32281 to develop a districtwide safety 
plan in lieu of developing school plans; thus, those districts may select either Option 1 or 2 to 
reflect district practice. Any district may choose to develop both district and school plans. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of a districtwide comprehensive safety 
plan that is applicable to each school site. (Education Code 32281) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following two paragraphs apply to all districts. Education Code 32286 
requires that the school site council review and update the comprehensive safety plan by March 
1 of each year. In districts with ADA of 2,500 or less that choose to develop a districtwide plan in 
accordance with Option 2 above, the Superintendent or designee may conduct the annual review. 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 32288, the updated plan(s) must be submitted to the district for 
approval. The Governing Board may choose to delegate to the Superintendent or designee the 
responsibility to review and approve the updated plans, but the Board remains responsible for 
ensuring compliance with the law. 
 

The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year and forwarded 
to the Board for approval. (Education Code 32286, 32288) 
 
The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state law, 
Board policy, and administrative regulation and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly scheduled meeting. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32288 requires that districts notify CDE if a school has not complied 
with the safety plan requirements. In the event that the Superintendent of Public Instruction 
determines that there has been a willful failure by a district to make any report required by 
Education Code 32280-32289, Education Code 32287 provides that the district may be fined up 
to $2,000. 
 

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department of 
Education (CDE) of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code 32281. 
(Education Code 32288) 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Tactical Response Plan 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 32281, the Board may, 
after consulting with law enforcement officials, elect to have the district, rather than the school 
site council, develop those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses 
to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury. 
 

Notwithstanding the process described above, any portion of a comprehensive safety plan that addresses 
tactical responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury at the school site, 
including steps to be taken to safeguard students and staff, secure the affected school premises, and 
apprehend the criminal perpetrator(s), shall be developed by district administrators in accordance with 
Education Code 32281. In developing such strategies, district administrators shall consult with law 
enforcement officials and with representative(s) of employee bargaining unit(s), if they choose to 
participate. 
 
When reviewing the tactical response plan, the Board may meet in closed session to confer with law 
enforcement officials and approve the tactical response plan, provided that any vote to approve the 
tactical response plan is announced in open session following the closed session. (Education Code 
32281) 
 
Access to Safety Plan(s) Access and Reporting 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and materials is 
readily available for inspection by the public. (Education Code 32282) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 32281, the Board 
may choose to prohibit disclosure of those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include 
tactical responses to criminal incidents. 
 

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal 
incidents shall not be publicly disclosed. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall share the comprehensive safety plans and any updates to the plans 
with local law enforcement, the local fire department, and other first responder entities. (Education 
Code 32281) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 32289.5, the district is required to provide data to CDE 
pertaining to lockdown or multi-option response drills conducted at district schools, as specified. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide data to CDE pertaining to lockdown or multi-option 
response drills conducted at district schools in accordance with Education Code 32289.5. (Education 
Code 32289.5) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: April 12, 2012 
revised: August 9, 2016 
revised: January 8, 2019 
revised: February 14, 2023 



Page 1 of 7 

 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional administrative regulation should be revised to reflect district 
practice. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 234.5, the California Department of Education (CDE) has posted on its 
web site a list of statewide resources for youth who have been subjected to school-based discrimination, 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, and youth affected by gangs, gun violence, and psychological 
trauma caused by violence at home, at  
 
Additionally, 6 USC 665k, as added by the Luke and Alex School Safety Act of 2022 (P.L. 117-159), 
requires the creation of a Federal Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices to serve as 
a federal resource to identify and publish online evidence-based practices and recommendations to 
improve school safety. 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Regulation 0450: Comprehensive Safety Plan 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Development and Review of Comprehensive School Safety Plan 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section reflects requirements for the development of site-level 
comprehensive safety plans pursuant to Education Code 32280-32289 and is for use by districts 
that selected Option 1 in the accompanying Board policy. Districts with an average daily 
attendance of 2,500 or less that selected Option 2 in the accompanying Board policy (i.e., that have 
developed a districtwide comprehensive safety plan applicable to all school sites in lieu of 
individual site plans, as authorized by Education Code 32281) should omit this section. 
 

The school site council shall consult with local law enforcement, the local fire department, and other 
first responders in the writing and development of the comprehensive school safety plan. When practical, 
the school site council shall also consult with other school site councils and safety planning committees. 
(Education Code 32281, 32282) 
 
The school site council may delegate the responsibility for developing a comprehensive safety plan to a 
school safety planning committee composed of the following members: (Education Code 32281) 

 
1. The principal or designee 

 
2. One teacher who is a representative of the recognized certificated employee organization 

 
3. One parent/guardian whose child attends the school 

 
4. One classified employee who is a representative of the recognized classified employee 

organization 
 

CSBA NOTE: Item #5 below may be modified to specify other groups or individuals who 
will be represented on the committee. For example, the committee might include 
representatives of social service agencies, other city or county agencies, health care and 
emergency service providers, community-based organizations, and/or students. 
 

5. Other members, if desired 
 
Before adopting the comprehensive safety plan, the school site council or school safety planning committee 
shall hold a public meeting at the school in order to allow members of the public the opportunity to express 
an opinion about the plan. (Education Code 32288) 



Page 2 of 7 

 

 
The school site council or safety planning committee shall notify, in writing, the following persons and 
entities of the public meeting: (Education Code 32288) 

 
1. The local mayor 

 
2. A representative of the local school employee organization 

 
3. A representative of each parent/guardian organization at the school, including the parent 

teacher association and parent teacher clubs 
 

4. A representative of each teacher organization at the school 
 

5. A representative of the school's student body government 
 

6. All persons who have indicated that they want to be notified 
 
In addition, the school site council or safety planning committee may notify, in writing, the following 
entities of the public meeting: (Education Code 32288) 

 
1. Representatives of local religious organizations 

 
2. Local civic leaders 

 
3. Local business organizations 

 
Content of the Safety Plan 
 
Each comprehensive safety plan shall include an assessment of the current status of any crime committed 
on campus and at school-related functions. (Education Code 32282) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. In 
assessing the current status of school crime as required by Education Code 32282, districts may 
contract with a consultant, work with local law enforcement, develop their own local assessment, 
and/or use available instruments such as the, "California Healthy Kids Survey," or the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention's, "Youth Risk Behavior Survey." 

 
The assessment may include, but not be limited to, reports of crime, suspension and expulsion rates, and 
surveys of students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding their perceptions of school safety. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32282 requires that the following components be included in the 
districtwide and/or school site safety plan. The district may expand this list to require other 
components at its discretion. 
 

The plan shall identify appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high level of 
school safety and address the school's procedures for complying with existing laws related to school 
safety, including all of the following: (Education Code 32282) 

 
1. Child abuse reporting procedures consistent with Penal Code 11164-11174.3 

 
2. Routine and emergency disaster procedures including, but not limited to: 

 
a. Adaptations for students with disabilities in accordance with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act 



Page 3 of 7 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32282 requires districts to incorporate earthquake 
emergency procedures into the comprehensive safety plan, as specified in Items #2b 
and #2c below. See BP/AR 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan and 
AR 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System for further details about 
required components of these procedures. 
 

b. An earthquake emergency procedure system in accordance with Education Code 32282 
 

c. A procedure to allow public agencies, including the American Red Cross, to use school 
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or 
other emergencies affecting the public health and welfare 

 
3. Policies pursuant to Education Code 48915(d) for students who commit an act listed in Education 

Code 48915(c) and other school-designated serious acts that would lead to suspension, expulsion, 
or mandatory expulsion recommendations 

 
4. Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous students pursuant to Education Code 49079 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 234.1 requires the Board to adopt policy prohibiting 
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying based on specified characteristics and 
requires school personnel who witness such acts to take immediate steps to intervene when 
safe to do so; see BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities and BP 
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment. In addition, the district's complaint process must 
include a timeline for investigating and resolving complaints and an appeals process; see 
BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
 

5. A policy consistent with the prohibition against discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and 
bullying pursuant to Education Code 200-262.4 
 

6. If the school has adopted a dress code prohibiting students from wearing "gang-related apparel" 
pursuant to Education Code 35183, the provisions of that dress code and the definition of 
"gang-related apparel" 
 

7. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of students, parents/guardians, and employees to and from 
school 
 

8. A safe and orderly school environment conducive to learning 
 

9. The rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Education Code 35291 and 
35291.5 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 32282, schools are required to include in their 
comprehensive safety plans procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal 
incidents, as specified in Item #10. Such procedures must be based on the specific needs and 
context of each school and community. 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 32281, the Governing Board may elect to have district 
administrators, rather than the school site council, develop those portions of the 
comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal incidents that may 
result in death or serious bodily injury; see the accompanying Board policy. 
 

10. Procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents, including procedures related to 
individuals with guns on campus and at school-related functions 

 
 



Page 4 of 7 

 

CSBA NOTE: The following components are optional and should be revised to reflect district 
practice.  
 

Among the strategies for providing a safe environment, the comprehensive safety plan may also include: 
 

1. Development of a positive school climate that promotes respect for diversity, personal and 
social responsibility, effective interpersonal and communication skills, self-esteem, anger 
management, and conflict resolution 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32261 and 32282 encourage, but do not require, all 
comprehensive safety plans to include policies and procedures aimed at the prevention of 
bullying, as defined in Education Code 48900(r). 
 

2. Disciplinary policies and procedures that contain prevention strategies, such as strategies to 
prevent bullying, hazing, and cyberbullying, as well as behavioral expectations and consequences 
for violations 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32261 encourages, but does not require, comprehensive safety 
plans to include Item #3, below. 
 

3. Strategies aimed at preventing potential incidents involving crime and violence on school 
campuses, including vandalism, drug and alcohol abuse, gang membership and violence, hate 
crimes, bullying, including bullying committed personally or by means of an electronic act, teen 
relationship violence, and discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment 

 
3.4. Curriculum that emphasizes prevention and alternatives to violence, such as multicultural 

education and literacy, character/values education, social and emotional learning, media analysis 
skills, conflict resolution, community service learning, and education related to the prevention 
of dating violence 

 
4.5. Parent/guardian involvement strategies, including strategies to help ensure parent/guardian 

support and reinforcement of the school's rules and increase the number of adults on campus 
 

CSBA NOTE: When providing parents/guardians with school safety materials and 
emergency communications, CSBA encourages districts to do so in language(s) 
understandable to parents/guardians, as appropriate for the school site. 
 

6. Provision of safety materials and emergency communications in language(s) understandable to 
parents/guardians 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49392, as added by SB 906 (Ch. 144, Statutes of 2022), 
requires districts, starting with the 2023-24 school year, to include in the annual notification 
to parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 48980 information related to the safe 
storage of firearms, as specified. 
 

7. Annual notification to parents/guardians related to the safe storage of firearms 
 

5.8. Prevention and intervention strategies related to the sale or use of drugs and alcohol which shall 
reflect expectations for drug-free schools and support for recovering students 

 
1.9. Collaborative relationships among the city, county, community agencies, local law 

enforcement, the judicial system, and the schools that lead to the development of a set of common 
goals and community strategies for violence prevention instruction 
 

6.10. District policy related toprohibiting the possession of firearms and ammunition on school 
grounds 



Page 5 of 7 

 

7.11. Measures to prevent or minimize the influence of gangs on campus 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32281 authorizes the principal, upon receiving verification 
from law enforcement, to notify parents/guardians and employees in writing that a violent 
crime has occurred on the school site. A "violent crime" is any act for which a student could 
be expelled and which meets the definition listed in Education Code 67381, including willful 
homicide, forcible rape, robbery, and aggravated assault, as defined in the, "Federal Bureau 
of Investigation's Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook." Education Code 32281 
encourages that the notice be sent no later than the second workday after receiving 
verification from law enforcement. 

 
20 USC 7912 requires that all students attending a "persistently dangerous" school be provided 
notice of the designation and an option to transfer to a different school within the district. See 
BP/AR 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment. 
 

8.12. Procedures for receiving verification from law enforcement when a violent crime has 
occurred on school grounds and for promptly notifying parents/guardians and 
employees of that crime 

 
13. Procedures for the early identification and threat assessment of, and appropriate response 

to, suspicious and/or threatening digital media content 
 

9.14. Assessment of the school's physical environment, including a risk management analysis and 
development of ground security measures such as procedures for closing campuses to outsiders, 
installing surveillance systems, securing the campus perimeter, protecting buildings against 
vandalism, and providing for a law enforcement presence on campus 

 
CSBA NOTE: Government Code 11549.3, as amended by AB 1352 (Ch. 593, Statutes of 2021), 
authorizes districts, at district expense, to request the Military Department, in consultation 
with the California Cybersecurity Integration Center, to perform an independent security 
assessment of the district or individual district school. Districts are encouraged to consult with 
the California Office of Emergency Services (OES) and utilize resources such as the State Threat 
Assessment System and Regional Fusion Centers to help assess potential threats. For more 
information see OES' web site. 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 35266, as added by AB 2355 (Ch. 498, Statutes of 2022), 
districts that experience a cyberattack, as defined, which impacts more than 500 students or 
personnel, are required to report such cyberattack to the California Cybersecurity 
Integration Center. 
 

15. Independent security assessment of the school's network infrastructure and selected web 
applications to identify vulnerabilities and provide recommendations to improve 
cybersecurity 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32282.1 does not require, but encourages, that 
comprehensive safety plans include the strategies described in Item #16 below, to the extent 
the district uses the listed professionals. CDE's, "The Comprehensive School Safety Plan: 
Recommended Components," available on its web site, includes athletic coaches in the list 
of professionals and specifies that community intervention professionals include those who 
speak languages other than English. 
 

10.16. Guidelines for the roles and responsibilities of mental health professionals, athletic 
coaches, community intervention professionals, school counselors, school resource officers, 
and police officers on school campuses. Guidelines may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 
 

a. Strategies to create and maintain a positive school climate, promote school safety, and 



Page 6 of 7 

 

increase student achievement 
 

b. Strategies to prioritize mental health and intervention services, restorative and transformative 
justice programs, and positive behavior interventions and support 

 
c. Protocols to address the mental health care of students who have witnessed a violent act 

at any time, including, but not limited to, while on school grounds, while coming or going 
from school, during a lunch period whether on or off campus, or during or while going to 
or coming from a school-sponsored activity 

 
11.17. Strategies for suicide prevention and intervention 

 
CSBA NOTE: Policies and/or plans for maintaining a safe school environment during a 
pandemic, as described in Item #18 below, may be included in the district's comprehensive safety 
plan. Such policies may include BP 0470 - COVID-19 Mitigation Plan, BP 3516.5 - Emergency 
Schedules, BP 4113.5 - Working Remotely, BP 4119.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease, 
BP/AR 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases, and BP/AR 6158 - Independent Study. 
 

18. District policy and/or plan related to pandemics 
 

CSBA NOTE: Penal Code 626.8 provides that a person may be guilty of a misdemeanor for 
infringing with or disrupting a school activity, remaining on campus after having been asked 
to leave, reentering within seven days of being asked to leave, establishing a continued 
pattern of unauthorized entry, or willfully or knowingly creating a disruption with the intent 
to threaten the immediate physical safety of a student in preschool or grades K-8 who is 
arriving at, attending, or leaving school; see BP/AR 3515.2 - Disruptions. 
 

12.19. Procedures to implement when a person interferes with or disrupts a school activity, 
remains on campus after having been asked to leave, or creates a disruption with the intent to 
threaten the immediate physical safety of students or staff 

 
13.20. Crisis prevention and intervention strategies, which may include the following: 

 
a. Identification of possible crises that may occur, determination of necessary tasks 

that need to be addressed, and development of procedures relative to each crisis, 
including the involvement of law enforcement and other public safety agencies as 
appropriate 

 
b. Threat assessment strategies to determine the credibility and seriousness of a 

threat and provide appropriate interventions for the potential offender(s) 
 

c. Assignment of staff members responsible for each identified task and procedure 
 

d. Development of an evacuation plan based on an assessment of buildings and grounds 
and opportunities for students and staff to practice the evacuation plan 

 
e. Coordination of communication to schools, Governing Board of Education members, 

parents/guardians, and the media 
 

f. Communication with parents/guardians of reunification plans and the necessity of 
cooperating with first responders 

 
f.g. Development of a method for the reporting of violent incidents 

 



Page 7 of 7 

 

g.h. Development of follow-up procedures that may be required after a crisis has 
occurred, such as counseling 
 

14. Staff development in violence prevention and intervention techniques, including preparation to 
implement the elements of the safety plan 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49390 and 49393, as added by SB 906, require 
certificated and classified employees of the district, or other school officials such as 
Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact 
on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or 
high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a 
homicidal act, as defined, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law 
enforcement in accordance with Education Code 49393. "Threat or perceived threat" 
means any writing or action of a student that creates a reasonable suspicion that the 
student is preparing to commit a homicidal act related to school or a school activity. 
This may include possession, use, or depictions of firearms, ammunition, shootings, or 
targets in association with infliction of physical harm, destruction, or death in a social 
media post, journal, class note, or other media associated with the student. It may also 
include a warning by a parent, student, or other individual. 
 

21. Training on assessment and reporting of potential threats, violence prevention, and 
intervention techniques. Such training shall include preparation to implement the 
elements of the safety plan 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 32284, the comprehensive safety plan may, at the 
discretion of the Board, include procedures for responding to the release of a pesticide or 
other toxic substance from properties located within one-quarter mile of a school. No state 
funds may be used for this purpose. 
 

15.22. Environmental safety strategies, including, but not limited to, procedures for 
preventing and mitigating exposure to toxic pesticides, lead, asbestos, vehicle 
emissions, and other hazardous substances and contaminants 

 
2.23. Continuity of operations procedures to ensure that the district's essential functions are not 

disrupted during an emergency, to the extent possible 
 

 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: April 10, 2012 
revised: January 8, 2019 
revised: February 14, 2023 





Page 1 of 6 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Policy 0460: Local Control And Accountability Plan 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Codes 52060-52077 require the Governing Board to adopt and 
annually update, on or before July 1, a local control and accountability plan (LCAP). Pursuant to 
Education Code 52060, the LCAP must include goals and actions aligned with eight state 
priorities related to (1) the degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully 
credentialed, students have sufficient access to standards-based instructional materials, and facilities 
are maintained in good repair; (2) implementation of and student access to state academic content 
and performance standards; (3) parent/guardian involvement and family engagement; (4) student 
achievement; (5) student engagement; (6) school climate; (7) student access to and enrollment in a 
broad course of study, including programs and services provided to benefit low-income students, 
English learners, and/or foster youth (i.e., "unduplicated students" for purposes of supplemental 
and concentration grants under the local control funding formula (LCFF)); and (8) student 
outcomes in the specified course of study. Education Code 52060 provides that, in addition to 
addressing the state priorities in the LCAP, the district may establish and address local priorities 
and goals. Examples include priorities for student wellness and other conditions of children, 
professional development, community involvement, effective governance and leadership, and 
environmental literacy. See the accompanying administrative regulation for further information 
about the required content of the LCAP. 

 
The Governing BoardThe Board of Education desires to ensure the most effective use of available 
funding to improve outcomes for all students. A comprehensive, data-driven planning process shall be 
used to identify annual goals and specific actions which are aligned with the county/district budget and 
facilitate continuous improvement of county/district practices. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52064, the State Board of Education (SBE) has adopted 
a template that districts must use to complete the LCAP. An electronic version of the template is 
available on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site. 

 
The Board shall adopt a county/districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), based on the 
template adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE), that addresses the state priorities in Education 
Code 52060 and any local priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP shall be updated on or before 
July 1 of each year and, like the district budget, shall cover the next fiscal year and two subsequent 
fiscal years.  (Education Code 52060, 52064; 5 CCR 15494-15497) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52060 requires that the LCAP include annual goals to be achieved 
for all students and for each numerically significant student subgroup as defined in Education 
Code 52052. In addition, several state priorities address programs and services for "unduplicated 
students," as defined in Education Code 42238.01- 42238.02. 

 
The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are "unduplicated 
students" or are part of any numerically significant student subgroup that is at risk of or is 
underperforming. 
 
Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English learners, 
and foster youth, as defined in Education Code 42238.01 for purposes of the local control funding 
formula (LCFF).  (Education Code 42238.02) 
 
Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged 
students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when there are 
at least 30 students in the subgroup or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students.  (Education Code 
52052) 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 6 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52064.3, as added by AB 181 (Ch. 52, Statutes of 
2022), by January 31, 2025, an Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum 
adopted by SBE relating to improvements in services for students with disabilities is required to be 
completed by districts that are identified by CDE as needing an improvement plan pursuant to 34 
CFR 300.600-300.647. Such identified districts must comply with the requirements specified 
in the following paragraph. 

 
Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district is identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) 
as needing an improvement plan pursuant to 34 CFR 300.600-300.647, the Board shall adopt, and update 
on an annual basis, an Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum, based on the 
template adopted by SBE. However, if the district adopts an improvement plan after being identified, 
but before July 1, 2025, the IDEA Addendum shall be developed upon expiration of the adopted 
improvement plan, but no later than July 1, 2028, whichever occurs first. The IDEA addendum shall be 
developed, reviewed, and approved in conjunction with and in the same manner as the LCAP and the 
annual update to the LCAP, and shall be submitted to CDE within 15 days of adoption by the Board. 
(Education Code 52064.3) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review the school plan for student achievement (SPSA) submitted 
by each district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific actions included 
in the LCAP are consistent with strategies included in the SPSA.  (Education Code 52062) 
 
The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans, to the extent possible, in order to 
minimize duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program implementation. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52064.1, districts are required to develop an LCFF 
budget overview for parents/guardians in conjunction with, and attached as a cover to, the LCAP 
and annual update to the LCAP. The budget overview is subject to the requirements of Education 
Code 52062 and 52070 pertaining to the adoption, review, and approval of the LCAP. 

 
As part of the LCAP adoption and annual update to the LCAP, the Board shall separately adopt an LCFF 
budget overview for parents/guardians, based on the template developed by the SBE, which includes 
specified information relating to the county/district's budget. The budget overview shall be adopted, 
reviewed, and approved in the same manner as the LCAP and the annual update.  (Education Code 
52064.1) 
 
Any complaint that the county/district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the 
LCAP may be filed pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 
52075) 
 
Plan Development 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and meaningful 
plan development and present it to the Board and community. Such data and information shall include, 
but not be limited to, data regarding the number of students in student subgroups, disaggregated data on 
student achievement levels, and information about current programs and expenditures. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52060 requires consultation on plan development with all of the 
groups listed below. The Board may delegate responsibility for arranging meetings and other 
input opportunities to the Superintendent or designee. 

 
5 CCR 15495 defines what it means to consult with students, including unduplicated students and 
other numerically significant student subgroups, and gives examples of methods that may be used 
for this consultation. State regulations do not provide examples of consultation with groups 
other than students, but consultations might include surveys, the establishment of an advisory 
committee consisting of representatives of all the specified groups, solicitation of feedback from 
the groups after a draft plan is available, discussion of the LCAP at staff meetings, and 
communication with parent organizations, student councils, school site councils, or other established 
committees or organizations. The district may expand the following paragraph to reflect district 
practice. 



Page 3 of 6 

The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, employee 
bargaining units, parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP.  Consultation with students 
shall enable unduplicated students and other numerically significant student subgroups to review and 
comment on LCAP development and may include surveys of students, student forums, student 
advisory committees, and/or meetings with student government bodies or other groups representing 
students.  (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 15495) 
 
Public Review and Input 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52063 and 5 CCR 15495, the Board is required to 
establish a parent advisory committee and, if district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English 
learners, an English learner parent advisory committee to review and comment on the LCAP. The 
district may use existing parent advisory committees for these purposes if the committee 
composition complies with Education Code 52063 and 5 CCR 15945. 
However, the district should consider whether such opportunities need to be expanded to achieve 
significant levels of stakeholder involvement in the planning process as intended by law. 

 
Education Code 52063, as amended by AB 181, requires the LCAP parent advisory committee to 
include parents/guardians of currently enrolled students with disabilities. 

 
The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee to review and commentprovide advice on the 
LCAP. The committee shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians and shall include 
parents/guardians of unduplicated students as defined above.  and parents/guardians of students with 
disabilities. (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495) 
 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for districts serving middle and/or high school students. 
Education Code 52063, as amended by SB 997 (Ch. 922, Statutes of 2022), requires, beginning July 
1, 2024, districts serving middle or high school students to include two students as full members of 
the existing parent advisory committee or establish a student advisory committee to provide advice 
to the Board and the Superintendent or designee. Student members of the parent advisory 
committee or the student advisory committee shall represent the diversity of the district's 
students, as described below. Districts that do not serve middle or high school students may delete 
the following paragraphs relating to student advisory members. 

 
Beginning July 1, 2024, unless a student advisory committee is established to provide advice to the 
Board and Superintendent, two students shall be included as full members of the parent advisory 
committee. The students shall serve for a renewable term of one full school year. (Education Code 
52063) 
 
Student members of the parent advisory committee or the student advisory committee shall represent 
the diversity of the district's students, including geographical, socioeconomic, cultural, physical, and 
educational diversity, and particular effort shall be made to reach out to at-risk or disadvantaged 
students to serve as members of such committees. (Education Code 52063) 
 
Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50 students who 
are English learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent advisory committee composed of 
a majority of parents/guardians of English learners to review and comment on the LCAP.  (Education 
Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is required in relation to parent advisory committees, 
pursuant to Education Code 52062. For consistency, it is recommended that the same treatment 
be afforded a student advisory committee established to advise the Board and Superintendent. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP to the committee(s) before it is submitted to the 
Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from the 
committee(s).  (Education Code 52062) 
 
 



Page 4 of 6 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52062 requires notification to the public of the opportunity to 
submit written comments on the proposed LCAP, including notification in the primary language 
of parents/guardians when required by Education Code 48985. Pursuant to Education Code 
48985, whenever 15 percent or more of the students in a school speak a single primary language 
other than English, notifications sent to parents/guardians of such students must be written in the 
primary language as well as in English; see BP 5145.6 - Parental Notifications.  
 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit 
written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the 
LCAP. The notification shall be provided using the most efficient method of notification possible, 
which may not necessarily include producing printed notices or sending notices by mail. All written 
notifications related to the LCAP shall be provided in the primary language of parents/guardians 
when required by Education Code 48985.  (Education Code 52062) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 305, the LCAP parent/guardian and community 
engagement process must include solicitation of input on language acquisition programs. See 
BP/AR 6174 - Education for English Learners for further information regarding the types of 
language acquisition programs that may be offered. 
 

As part of the parent/guardian and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on 
effective and appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing language 
acquisition programs to enable all students, including English learners and native English speakers, to 
have access to the core academic content standards and to become proficient in English.  (Education 
Code 305-306) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the administrator(s) of the special education local 
plan area of which the district is a member to ensure that specific actions for students with disabilities 
are included in the LCAP and are consistent with strategies included in the annual assurances support 
plan for the education of students with disabilities.  (Education Code 52062) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 42127, the Board must not adopt a district budget until 
the LCAP is in place for the budget year; see BP 3100 - Budget. The budget must include the 
expenditures necessary to implement the plan that will be effective during the subsequent fiscal 
year. If it does not, the County Superintendent of Schools will disapprove the district's budget. 
 

The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of 
members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the 
LCAP. The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the budget hearing required pursuant to 
Education Code 42127 and AR 3100 - Budget.  (Education Code 42127, 52062) 
 
Adoption of the Plan 
 
The Board shall adopt the LCAP prior to adopting the county/district budget, but at the same public 
meeting. This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the same day as 
the hearing.  (Education Code 52062) 
 
The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan is in effect, 
provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education Code 52062 and the 
revisions are adopted in a public meeting.  (Education Code 52062) 
 
Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52070 requires the district to submit the LCAP to the County 
Superintendent, who may seek written clarification of the contents of the plan and may submit 
recommendations for amendments as provided below. The County Superintendent is required to 
approve the LCAP on or before October 8 if it is determined that (1) the LCAP adheres to the 
template adopted by SBE and follows any SBE instructions or directions for completing the 
template; (2) the district budget includes expenditures sufficient to implement the specific actions 



Page 5 of 6 

and strategies in the LCAP; and (3) the LCAP adheres to supplemental and concentration grant 
expenditure requirements specified in Education Code 42238.07 for unduplicated students. In 
determining whether the district has fully demonstrated that it will use supplemental and 
concentration funds to increase or improve services for unduplicated students, 5 CCR 15497 
requires the County Superintendent to review any descriptions of districtwide or schoolwide 
services provided. 

 
Education Code 52064.1 requires the district to file the LCFF budget overview for 
parents/guardians with the County Superintendent to be reviewed for adherence with the 
template adopted by the SPI. If the budget overview is not approved, the County Superintendent 
will withhold approval of the LCAP and will provide technical assistance pursuant to Education 
Code 52071. 
 

Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the county/district budget, and the budget 
overview for parents/guardians, the Board shall file the LCAP, the budget, and the budget overview 
with the County Superintendent of Schools.  (Education Code 42127, 52064.1, 52070) 
 
If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the contents of 
the LCAP, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request.  If the County 
Superintendent then submits recommendations for amendments to the LCAP within 15 days of 
receiving the Board's response, the Board shall consider those recommendations in a public meeting 
within 15 days of receiving the recommendations.  (Education Code 52070) 
 
If the County Superintendent does not approve the county/district's LCAP, the Board shall accept 
technical assistance from the County Superintendent focused on revising the plan so that it can be 
approved.  (Education Code 52071) 
 
Monitoring Progress 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect the district's timeline 
for reviewing the progress and effectiveness of strategies included in the LCAP. Reports should be 
provided to the Board in sufficient time to allow for any necessary changes in the annual update to 
the LCAP by July 1 of each year, as required by Education Code 52060-52061. The Dashboard 
provides a tool to assist in evaluation of district and school performance and includes all of the 
state priorities for the LCAP described in Education Code 52060. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with the 
timeline and indicators established by the Superintendent and the Board, regarding the county/district's 
progress toward attaining each goal identified in the LCAP. Evaluation shall include, but not be limited 
to, an assessment of district and school performance reported on the California School Dashboard. 
Evaluation data shall be used to recommend any necessary revisions to the LCAP. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52071, when a school or a numerically significant student 
subgroup is not making sufficient progress toward its LCAP goals, the County Superintendent 
may be required to provide technical assistance or the Board may request technical assistance. In 
addition, the Superintendent of Public Instruction may intervene in any school which has been 
identified as in need of intervention based on criteria specified in Education Code 52072. Pursuant 
to Education Code 52059.5, CDE has established a unified system of support for districts and 
schools that meets state requirements as well as federal Title I requirements and ensures consistency 
between technical assistance provided under both sets of requirements. For more information, see 
BP 0520 - Intervention for Underperforming Schools. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall seek and/or accept technical assistance or other intervention that 
may be required pursuant to Education Code 52071 or 52072 or 20 USC 6311 when a school or a 
numerically significant student subgroup is not making sufficient progress toward the goals in the LCAP. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: December 10, 2013 



Page 6 of 6 

revised: May 12, 2015 
revised: December 12, 2017 
revised: January 8, 2019 
revised: November 12, 2019 
revised: February 14, 2023 



Page 1 of 4 

CSBA NOTE: Education Codes 52060-52077 require the Governing Board to adopt and annually update, 
on or before July 1, a three-year local control and accountability plan (LCAP). See the accompanying Board 
policy for  

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
Regulation 0460: Local Control And Accountability Plan 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local Priorities 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52060 requires that the LCAP include annual goals, aligned with 
specified state priorities, to be achieved for all students and for each numerically significant 
subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052. Pursuant to Education Code 52052, a numerically 
significant subgroup includes ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English 
learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when there are at least 30 
students in the subgroup (or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students) in the school or district. 

 
In addition, several state priorities address programs and services for "unduplicated students." For 
purposes of supplemental and concentration grants allocated through the local control funding 
formula (LCFF), "unduplicated students" are defined by Education Code 42238.02 as students 
eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English learners, and foster youth; see the accompanying 
Board policy. 
 

The county/district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and annual updates shall include, for 
the county/district and each district school:  (Education Code 52060) 

 
1. A description of the annual goals established for all students and for each numerically significant 

subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically 
disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless 
students. The LCAP shall identify goals for each of the following state priorities: 

 
a. The degree to which county/district teachers are appropriately assigned in accordance with 

Education Code 44258.9 and fully credentialed in the subject areas and for the students 
they are teaching; every county/district student has sufficient access to standards-aligned 
instructional materials as determined pursuant to Education Code 60119; and school 
facilities are maintained in good repair as specified in Education Code 17002 

 
b. Implementation of the academic content and performance standards adopted by the State 

Board of Education (SBE), including how the programs and services will enable English 
learners to access the Common Core State Standards and the English language development 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language 
proficiency 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52060 provides that family engagement may include, 
but not be limited to, efforts by the district and schools to apply research-based 
practices, such as welcoming all families into the school community, engaging in 
effective two-way communication, supporting student success, and empowering 
families to advocate for equity and access. It may also include partnering with families 
to inform, influence, and create practices and programs that support student success and 
collaboration with families and the broader community, expand student learning 
opportunities, and promote civic participation. 
 

c. Parent/guardian involvement and family engagement, including efforts the county/district 
makes to seek parent/guardian input in county/district and school site decision making 
and how the county/district will promote parent/guardian participation in programs for 



Page 2 of 4 

unduplicated students, as defined in Education Code 42238.02 and Board policy, and 
students with disabilities 

 
d. Student achievement, as measured by all of the following as applicable: 
 

i. Statewide assessments of student achievement 
 

ii. The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State 
University; have successfully completed career technical education (CTE) sequences 
or programs of study that align with SBE-approved career technical education 
standards and frameworks, including, but not limited to, those described in 
Education Code 52302, 52372.5, or 54692; and have successfully completed both 
college entrance courses and CTE sequences or programs 

 
iii. The percentage of English learners who make progress toward English proficiency as 

measured by the SBE-certified assessment of English proficiency 
 

iv. The English learner reclassification rate 
 

v. The percentage of students who have passed an Advanced Placement examination with 
a score of 3 or higher 

 
vi. The percentage of students who demonstrate college preparedness in the Early 

Assessment Program pursuant to Education Code 99300-99301 
 

e. Student engagement, as measured by school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, 
middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, and high school graduation rates, as 
applicable 

 
f. School climate, as measured by student suspension and expulsion rates and other local 

measures, including surveys of students, parents/guardians, and teachers on the sense of 
safety and school connectedness, as applicable 

 
g. The extent to which students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course of study that 

includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and 51220, as 
applicable, including the programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated 
students and students with disabilities, and the programs and services that are provided to 
benefit these students as a result of supplemental and concentration grant funding 
pursuant to Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03 

 
h. Student outcomes, if available, in the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and 

51220, as applicable 
 

CSBA NOTE: In addition to goals aligned with the state priorities described in Item #1 
above, Education Code 52060 provides that the LCAP may include goals for local 
priorities established by the Board; see the accompanying Board policy. Optional Item 
#2 below may be revised to reflect local priorities. 
 

2. Any goals identified for any local priorities established by the Board. 
 

3. A description of the specific actions the county/district will take during each year of the LCAP 
to achieve the identified goals, including the enumeration of any specific actions necessary for 
that year to correct any deficiencies in regard to the state and local priorities specified in 
itemsItems #1-2 above. Such actions shall not supersede provisions of existing collective 
bargaining agreements within the county/district. 



Page 3 of 4 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52060, in developing goals and actions for the LCAP, 
the Board may consider qualitative information, including, but not limited to, the results of 
school quality reviews conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052. Education Code 52052 
authorizes the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), with approval of the State Board of 
Education (SBE) and conditional upon an appropriation in the state budget, to develop and 
implement a program of school quality reviews that features locally convened panels to visit 
schools, observe teachers, interview students, and examine student work. 
 

For purposes of the descriptions required by itemsItems #1-3 above, the Board may consider qualitative 
information, including, but not limited to, findings that result from any school quality review 
conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052 or any other reviews.  (Education Code 52060) 
 
For any local priorities addressed in the LCAP, the Board and Superintendent or designee shall identify 
and include in the LCAP the method for measuring the county/district's progress toward achieving those 
goals.  (Education Code 52060) 
 
To the extent practicable, data reported in the LCAP shall be reported in a manner consistent with how 
information is reported on the California School Dashboard.  (Education Code 52060) 
 
Increase or Improvement in Services for Unduplicated Students 

 
The LCAP shall demonstrate how the district will increase or improve services for unduplicated students 
at least in proportion to the increase in funds apportioned on the basis of the number and 
concentration of unduplicated students.  (5 CCR 15494-15496) 
 
When the district expends supplemental and/or concentration grant funds on a districtwide or schoolwide 
basis during the year for which the LCAP is adopted, the district's LCAP shall:  (5 CCR 15496) 
 

1. Identify those services that are being funded and provided on a districtwide or schoolwide basis 
 

2. Describe how such services are principally directed towards, and are effective in, meeting the 
district's goals for unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local priority areas 
 

3. If the enrollment of unduplicated students is less than 55 percent of district enrollment or less 
than 40 percent of school enrollment, describe how these services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated students in the state priority areas and 
any local priority areas. The description shall provide the basis for this determination, 
including, but not limited to, any alternatives considered and any supporting research, 
experiences, or educational theory. 

 
Availability of the Plan 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52065 requires the district to prominently post its LCAP, any 
annual update or revisions to the LCAP, and LCFF budget overview for parents/guardians on 
the homepage of its web site. In addition, the County Superintendent of Schools is required to post 
all district LCAPs, or links to those plans, on the county office of education web site and to 
transmit all such plans to the SPI, who will then post links to all plans on the California 
Department of Education web site. 

grant funds. Such districts are required to increase or improve services for unduplicated 
students in proportion to the increase in funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of 
unduplicated students; see BP 

 



Page 4 of 4 

 
Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district is identified by SBE as needing an improvement plan 
pursuant to 34 CFR 300.600-300.647, the Board shall adopt, and update on an annual basis, an 
Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum, based on the template adopted by 
SBE. However, if the district adopts an improvement plan after being identified, but before July 1, 
2025, the IDEA Addendum shall be developed upon expiration of the adopted improvement 
plan, but no later than July 1, 2028. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall prominently post the LCAP, any updates or revisions to the 
LCAP, including the IDEA Addendum as applicable, and the LCFF budget overview for 
parents/guardians on the homepage of the county/district's web site.  (Education Code 52064.1, 
52064.3, 52065) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: December 10, 2013 
revised: May 12, 2015 
revised: December 12, 2017 
revised: January 8, 2019 
revised: November 12, 2019 
revised: February 14, 2023 



Page 1 of 3 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Policy 5131.7: Weapons And Dangerous Instruments 

 

 
The Governing Board of Education recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure 
campus free from physical and psychological harm and desires to protect them from the dangers 
presented by firearms and other weapons. 
 
Possession of Weapons 
 
The Board prohibits any student from possessing weapons, imitation firearms, or other dangerous 
instruments, as defined in law and administrative regulation, in school buildings, on school grounds or 
buses, when using district provided transportation, at school-related or school-sponsored activities away 
from school, or while going to or coming from school. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49390 and 49393, as added by SB 906 (Ch. 144, Statutes of 2022), 
require certificated and classified employees of the district, or other school officials such as 
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a 
regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who 
are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, as defined, to 
immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement in accordance with 
Education Code 49393. "Threat or perceived threat" means any writing or action of a student 
that creates a reasonable suspicion that the student is preparing to commit a homicidal act related 
to school or a school activity. This may include possession, use, or depictions of firearms, 
ammunition, shootings, or targets in association with infliction of physical harm, destruction, or 
death in a social media post, journal, class note, or other media associated with the student. It may 
also include a warning by a parent, student, or other individual. While the law is specific to 
district staff, the concept also applies to students and anyone else in the school community. 

 
Districts are encouraged to consult with the California Office of Emergency Services (OES) and 
utilize resources such as the State Threat Assessment System and Regional Fusion Centers to help 
assess potential threats. For more information see OES' web site. 
If a student is in possession of a prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument 
which creates a threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, any employee or other school 
official who is alerted to or observes such threat shall immediately report the threat to law 
enforcement. 

 
Under the power granted to the Board to protect the safety of students, staff, and others on district 
property and to maintain order and discipline in the schools, any school employee is authorized to 
confiscate any prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument from any student on school 
grounds. 
 
A student possessing and/or threatening others with any weapon, dangerous instrument, or imitation 
firearm shall be subject to suspension and/or expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and 
administrative regulations. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 20 USC 7961, any district receiving federal funds under the Elementary 
and Secondary Education Act is mandated to have a policy requiring that any student who brings 
a firearm to school be referred to the criminal justice or juvenile delinquency system. This mandate 
reinforces Education Code 48902, which requires the principal or designee to notify law 
enforcement authorities of violations of Education Code 48900(c) and (d) and Penal Code 245, 
626.9, and 626.10. In addition, Education Code 48902 requires the principal or designee to notify 
law enforcement authorities when a student possesses a firearm or explosive or sells or furnishes 
a firearm at school. For more information see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

The principal or designee shall notify law enforcement authorities when any student possesses a firearm, 
explosive, or other prohibited weapon or dangerous instrument without permission, sells or furnishes a 
firearm, or commits any act of assault with a firearm or other weapon. (Education Code 48902; Penal 
Code 245, 626.9, 626.10; 20 USC 71517961) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 48915 and 20 USC 7961 require the mandatory expulsion of a 
student who has possessed a firearm, brandished a knife, or committed any other acts listed in 
Education Code 48915(c). See AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process for grounds 
for suspension and expulsion and expulsion procedures. 
 

Unless a student has obtained prior written permission as specified below, a student possessing or 
threatening others with any weapon, dangerous instrument, or imitation firearm shall be subject to 
suspension and/or expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulations. 
 
All staff shall be made aware of their responsibilities regarding the reporting of potential homicidal acts to 
law enforcement, and receive training in the assessment and reporting of such threats. 
 
Advance Permission for Possession of a Weapon for Educational Purposes 
 

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 7961 allows possession of a firearm on school grounds for educational 
purposes when (1) the firearm is lawfully stored in a locked vehicle or (2) the principal 
authorizes possession for approved activities and the district has adopted appropriate safeguards to 
ensure student safety. Penal Code 626.10, consistent with 20 USC 7961, authorizes students to 
possess certain weapons with written permission of certificated or classified staff when necessary 
for a school -sponsored activity or class. 

 
The following optional section is for use by districts that wish to allow such possession of 
firearms and other weapons and should be modified to reflect specific safeguards and 
timelines adopted by the district. 
 

The parent/guardian of a student who desires to possess a firearm, imitation firearm, or other prohibited 
weapon on school grounds for an educational purpose shall submit a written request to the principal, at least 
five school days in advance of the planned possession, submit a written request to the principal which 
explains the planned use of the weapon and the duration. The student shall also submit, together with a 
written explanation from the staff person responsible for the school-sponsored activity or class. 
 
The principal may grant permission for such possession when he/she determines that itit is determined 
that possession of a firearm, imitation firearm, or other prohibited weapon on school grounds is necessary 
for a school-sponsored activity or class or as part of the educational program. Factors that shall be 
considered include, but are not limited to, the planned use of the weapon, the duration and location of 
the planned use, whether an audience is expected, and any perceived adverse effects to the safety and 
well-being of students or staff. If the principal grants such permission, he/she shall provide the student 
and staff person shall be provided with a written explanation regarding any limitations and the 
permissible duration of the student's possession. Any firearm shall remain unloaded until ammunition is 
required for the determined education purpose. 
 
When the principal or designee grants permission, he/she shall take all necessary precautions shall be 
taken to ensure the safety of all persons on school grounds and the safe keeping of the weapon, 
including, but not limited to, inspecting a firearm to verify that no live ammunition is present. Any 
permitted weapon allowed shall be stored in a locked vehicle andor in an appropriate, locked container 
before and after its authorized use. 
 
AAny student granted permission to possess a weapon may be suspended and/or expelled if he/she 
possesses or uses the weapon is possessed or used inappropriately. 
 
Possession of Pepper Spray 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
To prevent potential misuse that may harm students or staff, students are prohibited from carrying tear gas 
or tear gas weapons such as pepper spray on campus or at school activities. 
 
Reporting of Dangerous Objects 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section should be modified to reflect district practice. Pursuant to 
Education Code 49330, an "injurious object" is an object capable of inflicting substantial bodily 
damage not necessary for the academic purpose of the student and those objects listed in 
specified sections of the Penal Code; see the accompanying administrative regulation. These 
weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms, knives, metal knuckles, and explosives. 
 

The Board encourages students to promptly report the presence of weapons, injurious objects, or other 
suspicious activity to school authorities. The identity of a student who reports such activity shall 
remain confidential to the extent permitted by law. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies designed to facilitate student reporting of the 
presence of injurious objects on school grounds, such as tip hotlines, electronic transmissions, or other 
methods that preserve the student's anonymity. Incident reports and records shall not identify the 
student who reported the possession. The Superintendent or designee also shall also inform staff, 
students, and parents/guardians that students who report the presence of injurious objects on school 
campuses are to be protected and their identity shielded. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: April 10, 2012 
revised: February 14, 2023 





Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Regulation 5131.7: Weapons And Dangerous Instruments 

 

 
Prohibited weapons and dangerous instruments include, but are not limited to: (Education Code 48915, 
49330; Penal Code 626.10, 16100-1735017360, 30310) 
 

1. Firearms: pistols, revolvers, shotguns, rifles, machineguns, "zip guns," "stun guns," tasers, cane 
guns, camouflaging firearms, and any other device from which is expelled through a barrel and 
capable of propelling a projectile by the force of an explosion or other form of combustion 

 
2. Ammunition or reloaded ammunition 

 
3. Knives, razor blades, and box cutters: any dirks, daggers (or concealed dirks or daggers), cane 

swords, ice picks, or other weapons with a fixed, sharpened blade fitted primarily for stabbing, 
weapons with a blade fitted primarily for stabbing, weapons with a blade longer than 23-1/2 
inches, folding knives with a blade that locks into place, switchblade knives, and razors with an 
unguarded blade 

 
4. Explosive and/or incendiary devices: pipe bombs, time bombs, rockets or rocket propelled 

projectile launchers, cap guns, bullets containing or carrying an explosive agent, containers of 
inflammable fluids, and other hazardous devices 
 or concealed explosive substances 

 
5. Any instrument that expels a metallic projectile, such as a BB or a pellet, through the force of air 

pressure, carbon dioxide pressure, or spring action, or any spot marker gun 
 

6. Any other dangerous device, instrument, or weapon, including those defined in Penal Code 
1202016000-34370, including a blackjack, slingshot, billy, nunchaku, sandclub, sandbag, metal 
knuckles, or any metal plate with three or more radiating points with one or more sharp edges 
designed for use as a weapon 
 

7. Any imitation firearm, defined as a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical 
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a 
firearm 

 
CSBA NOTE: The remainder of this administrative regulation is optional and provides a process for 
an employee to use when taking possession of a weapon or dangerous instrument from a student. 
Pursuant to Education Code 49334, a school employee who initially notifies a law enforcement 
agency about any person possessing an unauthorized weapon or dangerous instrument on campus 
may not be subject to any civil or administrative proceeding, including any disciplinary action, 
for doing so, notwithstanding any district policy or regulation to the contrary. The employee 
must follow any other requirements of district policy or regulation upon notifying the law 
enforcement agency. See BP 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security for language regarding 
employee reports of adults possessing injurious objects. 
 

Any employee may take any weapon or dangerous instrument from the personal possession of a student 
while the student is on school premises or under the authority of the district. (Education Code 49331, 
49332) 
 
In determining whether to take possession of the weapon or dangerous instrument, the employee shall 
use his/herthe employee's own judgment as to the dangerousness of the situation and, based upon this 
analysis, shall take one of the following actions: 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately 

 
2. Immediately notify the principal, who shall take appropriate action 

 
CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49390 and 49393, as added by SB 906 (Ch. 144, Statutes of 
2022), require certificated and classified employees of the district, or other school officials 
such Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in 
contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or 
high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, as 
defined, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement in 
accordance with Education Code 49393, and as reflected in the accompanying board policy. 
 

3. Immediately notify the local law enforcement agency and the principal 
 
When informing the principal about the possession of a weapon or dangerous instrument, the employee 
shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the circumstances of the possession. 
 
The principal shall report any possession of a weapon or dangerous instrument to the student's 
parents/guardians by telephone or in person, and shall follow this notification with a letter. 
 
The employee shall retain possession of the instrument until the risk of its use as a weapon has dissipated 
or, upon the request of the student's parent/guardian, until the parent/guardian appears and 
personally takes possession. (Education Code 49331, 49332) 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: April 10, 2012 
revised: February 14, 2023 



Page 1 of 4 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Regulation 5141.3: Health Examinations 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 1232h, the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment, mandates that any 
district receiving funds from a program administered by the U.S. Department of Education adopt a 
policy regarding physical examinations and screenings that the district may administer; see BP/AR 
5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights for language implementing this mandate. 20 USC 
1232h also requires districts to notify parents/guardians, at the beginning of the school year, of 
the dates during the school year when physical exams or screenings are scheduled and of the 
process to opt their children out of participation. 
 

The principal at each school shall notify parents/guardians of the rights of students and parents/guardians 
related to health examinations. (Education Code 48980; 20 USC 1232h) 
 
A parent/guardian may annually file with the principal a written statement withholding consent to the 
child's physical examination of his/her child. Any such student shall be exempt from any physical 
examination but shall be subject to exclusion from attendance when contagious or infectious disease is 
reasonably suspected. (Education Code 49451; 20 USC 1232h) 
 
Vision Tests 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that maintain any of grades K-8. 
Education Code 49455 requires vision appraisals every three years through grade 8. 
 

Each student's vision shall be appraised, by the school nurse or other personnel authorized under 
Education Code 49452, during the kindergarten year or upon first enrollment or entry in a district 
elementary school and subsequently in grades 2, 5, and 8. However, a student who is tested upon first 
enrollment or entry in the district in grade 4 or 7 shall not be required to be appraised in the next 
immediate year. (Education Code 49455) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49455 requires male students to be tested for color vision in grade 
1 or later. It may be most efficient to conduct the color vision screening during the regularly 
scheduled testing in grade 2, 5, or 8. 
 

The vision appraisal shall include tests for visual acuity, including near vision. Male students shall also be 
tested once for color vision in grade 1 or later and the results of the appraisal shall be entered in the 
student's health record. (Education Code 49455) 
 
Appraisal of a student's vision may be waived under either of the following conditions: (Education Code 
49455) 
 

1. The student's parent/guardian requests a waiver and presents a certificate from a 
physician/surgeon, physician assistant, or optometrist showing the results of an examination of 
the student's vision, including visual acuity and, in male students, color vision. 
 

2. The student's parents/guardians file with the principal a written statement that they 
adhere to the faith or teachings of any well-recognized religious sect, denomination, or 
organization and, in accordance with its creed, tenets, or principles depend for healing 
upon prayer in the practice of their religion. 

Cautionary Notice: Government Code 17581.5 relieves districts from the obligation to perform specified 
mandated activities, including scoliosis screening, when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during 
that fiscal year. As a result, districts should determine whether the Budget Act for the current fiscal year allows 
for the suspension of these requirements, and if so, suspend certain provisions of the following administrative 
regulation related to scoliosis screening. For more information, the district should consult CSBA's District and 
County Offices of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel. 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 
Visual defects or any other defects found as a result of the vision examination shall be reported to the 
parent/guardian with a request that remedial action be taken to correct or cure the defect. The report 
of a visual defect, if made in writing, shall be made on a form prescribed by the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction. The report shall not include a referral to any private practitioner. However, the student 
may be referred to a public clinic or diagnostic and treatment center operated by a public hospital or 
by the state, county, or city department of public health. (Education Code 49456) 
 
In addition to the vision appraisals described above, the school nurse and/or classroom teacher shall 
continually and regularly observe students' eyes, appearance, behavior, visual performance, and perception 
that may indicate vision difficulties. (Education Code 49455) 

 
Eye Examinations for the Purpose of Eyeglasses 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49455.5, as added by AB 2329 (Ch. 911, Statutes of 2022), 
authorizes districts to enter into a memorandum of understanding with a nonprofit eye 
examination provider to provide eye examinations and eyeglasses to students at district schools. 
Such examinations may only be provided for the purpose of providing eyeglasses and not take the 
place of the general vision appraisals described above. Schools that allow these examinations on 
their school site must notify parents/guardians of the eye examinations and provide a form to opt 
out of the examination. Pursuant to Education Code 49455.5, as added by AB 2329, the 
California Department of Education (CDE) is required to, by March 1, 2023, develop and post 
on its web site a model opt out form for such purpose. 
 

In addition to the vision appraisals described above, the district may enter into a memorandum of 
understanding with a nonprofit eye examination provider, including a mobile provider, to provide 
noninvasive eye examinations at a district school exclusively for the purpose of providing eyeglasses. 
(Education Code 49455.5) 
 
Prior to any eye examination, the school shall notify parents/guardians of the upcoming eye examination 
and include a form that allows them to opt their child out of the examination. Parents/guardians who 
have submitted a general opt-out written statement in accordance with Education Code 49451 are 
deemed to have opted out. (Education Code 49455.5) 
 
Parents/guardians whose child receives an eye examination shall be provided a report by the provider in 
accordance with Education Code 49456. (Education Code 49455.5) 
 
Hearing Tests 
 

CSBA NOTE: Procedures for conducting school hearing tests are contained in 17 CCR 2951 and the 
California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Manual for the School Audiometrist. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide for the administration of hearing tests to district students by 
personnel authorized to conduct such testing pursuant to Education Code 49452 and 49454 and in 
accordance with the procedures specified in 17 CCR 2951. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Items #1-5 below may be revised to reflect district practice and the grade levels 
offered by the district. 

 
Pursuant to 17 CCR 2951, the district may annually request that DHCS waive the requirement 
for the hearing screening test for grade 10 and/or 11. The waiver request must include the dates 
of the school year for which the waiver is requested and an alternative testing plan that ensures 
each student at risk of hearing loss (i.e., students who are exposed to loud noises, including loud 
music; have a previously documented problem; have not had a hearing test for three years; or are 
enrolled for the first time in the district) is referred for testing by a parent/guardian or teacher. 
 

Each student shall be given a hearing screening test at the following times: (17 CCR 2951) 
 

1. Kindergarten or Grade 1 
 



Page 3 of 4 

 

2. Grade 2 
 

3. Grade 5 
 

4. Grade 8 
 

5. Grade 10 or 11 
 

6. Upon first entry into the California public school system 
 
Each student enrolled in a special education program, other than those enrolled because of a hearing 
problem, shall be given a hearing test when enrolled in the program and every third year thereafter. 
Hearing tests may be given more frequently as needed, based on the individualized education program 
team's evaluation of the student. (17 CCR 2951) 
 
A follow-up hearing threshold test shall be administered to any student who fails to respond to any of 
the required frequencies in the screening test or is otherwise determined to need further evaluation. 
(17 CCR 2951) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification of test results to the 
parents/guardians of any student who fails the hearing tests. When the test results fall within the levels 
specified in 17 CCR 2951 or there is evidence of pathology, such as an infection of the outer ear, chronic 
drainage, or a chronic earache, the notification shall include a recommendation that a further medical 
and audiological evaluation be obtained. (17 CCR 2951) 
 
The dates and results of all screening tests and copies of threshold tests shall be included in the student's 
health records. (17 CCR 2951) 
 
The principal or designee shall prepare an annual report of the school hearing testing program, using 
forms provided by the Department of Health Services, with copies to the Superintendent and the County 
Superintendent of Schools. (17 CCR 2951) 
 
Scoliosis Screening 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that maintain grades 7-8. 
 

Each female student in grade 7 and each male student in grade 8 shall be screened for scoliosis. 
(Education Code 49452.5) 
 
The parent/guardian of any student suspected of having scoliosis shall receive a notice which includes an 
explanation of scoliosis and describes the significance of treatment at an early age. This notice shall 
also describe the public services available for treatment and include a referral to appropriate 
community resources. (Education Code 49452.5) 
 
Type 1 Diabetes Information 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that serve elementary school students. 
 

Education Code 49452.6, as added by SB 97 (Ch. 674, Statutes of 2021), requires districts, 
beginning January 1, 2023, to make type 1 diabetes informational materials developed by CDE 
available to parents/guardians, as described below. Pursuant to Education Code 49452.6, as added 
by SB 97, CDE is required to develop and post the informational materials on its web site, for use 
by districts. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians of children enrolled in elementary 
school for the first time, or with the annual notifications pursuant to Education Code 48980, an 
information sheet developed by the California Department of Education (CDE) regarding type 1 diabetes 
as specified in Education Code 49452.6. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

Type 2 Diabetes Information 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that offer grade 7 but may 
be used by districts that wish to increase diabetes awareness among parents/guardians and students 
at other grade levels. Pursuant to Education Code 49452.7, CDE has developed an information 
sheet for use by districts and has posted the sheet on its web site. 
 

Because type 2 diabetes in children is a preventable and treatable disease, parents/guardians are 
encouraged to have their child screened by an authorized health care practitioner for risk factors of the 
disease, including excess weight, and to request tests of their child's blood glucose to determine if 
he/shethe child has type 2 diabetes or pre-diabetes. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians of incoming students in grade 7, or with 
the annual notifications pursuant to Education Code 48980, an information sheet developed by the CDE 
regarding type 2 diabetes, which includes: (Education Code 49452.7) 
 

1. A description of the disease and its risk factors and warning signs 
 

2. A recommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or warning 
signs associated with type 2 diabetes be screened for the disease 

 
3. A description of the different types of diabetes screening tests available 

 
4. A description of treatments and prevention methods 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph reflects legislative intent expressed in Education 
Code 49452.7.  

 
The Superintendent or designee may provide information to parents/guardians regarding public or private 
sources from which they may receive diabetes screening and education services for free or at reduced 
costs. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 14, 2011 
revised: April 14, 2015 
revised: February 14, 2023 



Page 1 of 2 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Policy 5142: Safety 

 

 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy should be modified to reflect district practice. 
 

Under the California Tort Claims Act (Government Code 810-996.6), a district may be held liable 
for personal injuries caused by dangerous conditions on school property and for its employees' 
failure to use reasonable care to prevent foreseeable injuries resulting from school activities. The 
court in Dailey v. Los Angeles Unified School District held that, within the scope of their 
employment, school staff must exercise the degree of care "which a person of ordinary prudence, 
charged with (comparable) duties, would exercise under the same circumstances." In 
J.H. v. Los Angeles Unified School District, the court held that the district had a duty to use 
ordinary care in supervising the after-school program. 

 
With regard to athletic activities, the court in Kahn v. East Side Union High School District held that 
schools have no legal duty to eliminate risks inherent in the activity itself because students are 
deemed to assume those risks by participating in the activity. However, schools do have a duty to 
exercise due care not to increase the risks over and above those inherent in the sport. 
 

The Governing Board of Education recognizes the importance of providing a safe school environment 
that is conducive to learning and promotes student safety and well-being.  Appropriate measures shall 
be implemented to minimize the risk of harm to students, including, but not limited to, protocols for 
maintaining safe conditions on school grounds, promoting safe use of school facilities and equipment, 
and guiding student participation in educational programs and school-sponsored activities. 
 

CSBA NOTE: 6 USC 665k, as added by the Luke and Alex School Safety Act of 2022 (P.L. 117-
159), requires the creation of a Federal Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices 
to serve as a federal resource to identify and publish online evidence-based practices and 
recommendations to improve school safety. 
 

Additionally, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly review current guidance regarding 
cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the district's 
processes and procedures related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure, and the 
monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content. 
 
School staff shall be responsible for the proper supervision of students at all times when students are 
subject to district rules, including, but not limited to, during school hours, school-sponsored activities, 
before and after-school programs, morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up, and while students are 
using district provided transportation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students receive appropriate instruction on topics related 
to safety and emergency procedures, as well as injury and disease prevention. 
 
Crossing Guards/Student Safety Patrol 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is optional. School crossing guards may be employed by the 
Governing Board pursuant to Education Code 45450-45451 and by cities and counties pursuant to 
Vehicle Code 42200 and 42201. Education Code 49300 authorizes the Board to establish a 
student safety patrol at any district school for the purpose of assisting students in safely crossing 
streets. See the accompanying administrative regulation for requirements pertaining to safety 
patrols. 

 
To assist students in safely crossing streets adjacent to or near school sites, the Board may employ 



Page 2 of 2 

crossing guards and/or establish a student safety patrol at any district school. The Superintendent or 
designee shall periodically examine traffic patterns within school attendance areas in order to identify 
locations where crossing assistance may be needed. 
 
Student Identification Cards and Safety Information 

 
Student identification cards of students in grades 7-12 shall have printed on them safety information, 
including the following: (Education Code 215.5) 

1. The National Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone number and, at the district's discretion, the 
Crisis Text Line and/or a local suicide prevention hotline telephone number 

 
2. The National Domestic Violence Hotline 
 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: December 13, 2019 
revised: February 14, 2023 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is for use by districts that serve students in grades 7-12. 
 
Education Code 215.5 requires districts that issue student identification cards to have printed on either side of 
the 

 
If, as of January 1, 2020, the district has a supply of unissued student identification cards that do not comply 
with the above requirements, the cards may be issued until the supply is depleted. 



Page 1 of 5 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Students 
Regulation 5142: Safety 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional administrative regulation may be revised to reflect district 
practice. 
 

At each school, the principal or designee shall establish emergency procedures, rules for student conduct, 
and rules for the safe and appropriate use of school facilities, equipment, and materials, consistent with 
law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. The rules shall be communicated to students, distributed 
to parents/guardians, and readily available at the school at all times. 
 
Release of Students 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. For release 
of students during an emergency, see AR 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan. 
 

Students shall be released during the school day only to the custody of an adult who is one of the 
following: 
 

1. The student's custodial parent/guardian 
 

2. An adult authorized on the student's emergency card as an individual to whom the student may 
be released when the custodial parent/guardian cannot be reached, provided the principal or 
designee verifies the adult's identity 
 

3. An authorized law enforcement officer acting in accordance with law 
 

4. An adult taking the student to emergency medical care at the request of the principal or designee 
 
Supervision of Students 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 

Pursuant to 5 CCR 5570, teachers are required to be present at their rooms and admit students not 
less than 30 minutes before school starts unless otherwise provided by rule of the Governing 
Board. The district's collective bargaining agreement may include supervision of students. The 
following paragraph may be revised to maintain consistency with the district's collective 
bargaining agreement and/or district practice. 
 

Teachers shall be present at their respective rooms and shall open them to admit students not less than 30 
minutes before the time that school starts.  (5 CCR 5570) 
 
Every teacher shall hold students to a strict account for their conduct on the way to and from school, on 
the playgrounds, and during recess.  (Education Code 44807) 
 
The principal or designee shall require all individuals supervising students to remain alert for 
unauthorized persons and dangerous conditions, and promptly report any unusual incidents to the 
principal or designee and file a written report as appropriate. 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 5 

 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49393, as added by SB 906 (Ch. 144, Statutes of 2022), requires 
the reporting of potential homicidal acts related to school or a school activity, as described below. 

 
Districts are encouraged to consult with the California Office of Emergency Services (OES) and 
utilize resources such as the State Threat Assessment System and Regional Fusion Centers to help 
assess potential threats. For more information see OES' web site. 
 

Any certificated or classified employee, or other school official, whose duties bring the employee or 
other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a 
middle of high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, as 
defined, shall immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement in accordance with 
Education Code 49393. (Education Code 49390, 49393) 
 
Threat or perceived threat means any writing or action of a student that creates a reasonable suspicion 
that the student is preparing to commit a homicidal act related to school or a school activity. This may 
include possession, use, or depictions of firearms, ammunition, shootings, or targets in association with 
infliction of physical harm, destruction, or death in a social media post, journal, class note, or other 
media associated with the student. It may also include a warning by a parent, student, or other 
individual. 
 
Additionally, anyone who receives or learns of a health or safety threat related to school or a school 
activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district administrator. 

 
In arranging for appropriate supervision on playgrounds, the principal or designee shall: 
 

1. Clearly identify supervision zones and require all playground supervisors to remain at a 
location from which they can observe their entire zone of supervision and be observed by 
students in the supervision zone 

 
2. Consider the size of the playground area, the number of areas that are obstructed from open 

view, and the age of the students to determine the ratio of playground supervisors to students 
 
At any school where playground supervision is not otherwise provided, the principal or designee shall provide 
for certificated employees to supervise the conduct and safety, and direct the play, of students who are on 
school grounds before and after school and during recess and other intermissions.  (5 CCR 5552) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers, teacher aides, playground supervisors, yard aides, 
and volunteers who supervise students receive training in safety practices and in supervisory techniques that 
will help prevent problems and resolve conflicts among students.  SuchAdditionally, all staff and other school 
officials shall be made aware of their responsibilities regarding the reporting of potential homicidal acts to law 
enforcement, and receive training in the assessment and reporting of such threats. The training shall be 
documented and kept on file. 
 
Student Safety Patrols 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section is optional. 
 

A school safety patrol shall be composed of students of the school selected by the principal or designee 
and shall be allowed to serve only with written consent of the students and their parents/guardians. Patrol 
members shall be at least 10 years old and at least in the fifth grade.  (Education Code 49302; 5 CCR 571) 
 
School safety patrols shall be used only at those locations where the nature of traffic will permit their safe 
operation. The locations where school safety patrols are used should be determined jointly with the local 
law enforcement agency.  (5 CCR 572) 
 
Patrol members shall be under the supervision and control of the principal or designee and shall receive 
training in proper procedures, including, but not limited to, the operations specified in 5 CCR 573-
574.  Whenever on duty, patrol members shall wear the standard uniform required by 5 CCR 576. 



Page 3 of 5 

 

 
Playground Safety 
 
 

CSBA NOTE: Health and Safety Code 115725 defines "playground" to include fall zones, surface 
materials, access ramps, and all areas within and including the designated enclosure and barriers. 
 

Any new playground or any replacement of equipment or modification of components inside an existing 
playground shall conform to standards set forth by the American Society for Testing and Materials and 
the guidelines set forth by the U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall have a playground safety inspector certified by the National Playground Safety Institute 
conduct an initial inspection to aid compliance with applicable safety standards.  (Health and Safety Code 
115725) 
 
Activities with Safety Risks 

 
Due to concerns about the risk to student safety, the principal or designee shall not permit the 
following activities on campus or during school-sponsored events unless the activity is properly 
supervised, students wear protective gear as appropriate, and each participant has insurance coverage: 
 

1. Trampolining 
2. Scuba diving 
3. Skateboarding or use of scooters 
4. In-line or roller skating or use of skate shoes 
5. Sailing, boating, or water skiing 
6. Cross-country or downhill skiing 
7. Motorcycling 
8. Target shooting 
9. Horseback riding 

10. Rodeo 
11. Archery 
12. Mountain bicycling 
13. Rock climbing 
14. Rocketeering 
15. Surfing 
16. Body Contact Sports 
16.17. Other activities determined by the principal to have a high risk to student safety 

 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section lists activities that might be prohibited by the district because 
of high risk to student safety and should be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
Pursuant to Government Code 831.7, public entities, including districts, are not liable to participants in a 
hazardous recreational activity, those who assist participants, or spectators for any damage to person or 
property arising out of the hazardous recreational activity when the person knew or reasonably should 
have known that the hazardous recreational activity created a substantial risk of injury and was 
voluntarily in the place of risk or having the ability to leave but failed to do so. Government Code 831.7 
defines a "hazardous recreational activity" as a recreational activity conducted on school grounds that 
creates a substantial risk of injury, as distinguished from a minor, trivial, or insignificant risk of injury. 
The list below includes, but is not limited to, some of the hazardous recreational activities listed in 
Government Code 831.7. Prior to authorizing such activities, it is recommended that districts consult with 
their insurance carrier or joint powers authority or, for those who self-insure, with CSBA District and 
County Offices of Education Legal Services or district legal counsel. See BP/AR 3530 - Risk 

 
 



Page 4 of 5 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Vehicle Code 21201 establishes requirements 
for bicycles on roadways in regard to brakes, handlebars, size, and illumination when operated 
during darkness. Districts may want to provide such information to students and 
parents/guardians. 

 
To enable the district to provide students safety instruction related to using electric, motorized, or 
nonmotorized bicycles and scooters, Education Code 51860, as amended by AB 2028 (Ch. 116, 
Statutes of 2022), authorizes the Board to assist local law enforcement, nonprofit associations or 
organizations specified in Education Code 38134, such as the Girls Scouts, Boys Scouts, and parent-
teacher associations, and public agencies that provide such safety instruction, in providing safety 
instruction to district students. 

 
Additionally, Streets and Highways Code 894, as added by AB 1946 (Ch. 147, Statutes of 2022), 
requires the Department of the California Highway Patrol to develop and post on its web site, by 
September 1, 2023, statewide safety and training programs for users of electric bicycles, including, but 
not limited to, general electric bicycle riding safety, emergency maneuver skills, rules of the road, and 
laws pertaining to electric bicycles. 
 

As needed, the Superintendent or designee may periodically provide training or instruction to students 
on the safe use of electric, motorized or nonmotorized bicycles, scooters, skateboards, and roller skates, 
upon a street, bikeway, or . Any student who rides any other publicsuch bicycle path or trail, scooter, 
skateboard, or roller skates at school shall wear a properly fitted and fastened bicycle helmet. 
 
Events In or Around a Swimming Pool 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following section is optional. Any district that chooses to sponsor or host an on-
campus event that is not part of an interscholastic athletic program in or around a swimming pool is 
required to comply with the following paragraph, pursuant to Education Code 35179.6, as amended by 
SB 722 (Ch. 679, Statutes of 2021). 
 

When any on-campus event that is not part of an interscholastic athletic program is sponsored or 
hosted by the district and is to be held in or around a swimming pool, at least one adult with a valid 
certification of cardiopulmonary resuscitation training shall be present throughout the duration of the 
event.  (Education Code 35179.6) 
 
Laboratory Safety 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section reflects the Legislature's intent as stated in Education 
Code 49341, and the California Department of Education's Science Safety Handbook for Public 
Schools. 
 

The principal of each school offering laboratory work shall develop procedures for laboratory safety and 
designate a trained certificated employee to implement and regularly review , update, and implement 
these procedures. 
 
Students in a laboratory shall be under the supervision of a certificated employee.  Students shall be 
taught laboratory safety, and safety guidelines and procedures shall be posted in science classrooms. 
Students shall receive continual reminders about general and specific hazards. 
 
Hazardous materials shall be properly used, stored, and disposed of in accordance with law and the 
district's chemical hygiene plan. 
 
Bloodborne pathogens shall be handled in accordance with the district's exposure control plan. 
 
The district's emergency plan, emergency contact numbers, and first aid supplies shall be readily 



Page 5 of 5 

 

accessible. 
 
Parents/guardians shall be made aware of the kinds of laboratory activities that will be conducted during 
the school year. 
 
Hearing Protection 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall monitor students' exposure to excessive noise in classrooms and 
provide protection as necessary. The Superintendent or designee may also provide hearing conservation 
education to teach students ways to protect their hearing. 
 
Eye Safety Devices 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 32031 addresses circumstances under which eye protection devices 
must be used.  
 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide schools with eye safety devices for use whenever students, 
teachers, or visitors are engaged in or observing an activity or using hazardous substances likely to cause 
injury to the eyes. Eye safety devices may be sold to students for an amount not to exceed the actual 
cost to the district.  (Education Code 32030, 32031, 32033) 
 
Protection Against Insect Bites 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 

To help protect students against insect bites or stings that may spread disease or cause allergic reactions, 
students shall be allowed to apply insect repellent provided by their parents/guardians, when engaging in 
outdoor activities.  Any application of insect repellent shall occur under the supervision of school 
personnel, and in accordance with the manufacturer's directions. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: February 10, 2009 
revised: December 13, 2019 
revised: May 10, 2022 
revised: February 14, 2023 





Page 1 of 10 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Instruction 
Regulation 6164.4: Identification And Evaluation Of Individuals For Special Education 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56303, a student should be referred for special 
education instruction and services only after the resources of the regular education program such as 
Response to Instruction and Intervention (RtI2) strategies have been considered and, where 
appropriate, utilized. However, the U.S. Department of Education's Office of Special Education 
Programs (OSEP) Memorandum 11-07 emphasizes that districts have an obligation to ensure that 
evaluations of children suspected of having a disability are not delayed or denied because of the 
implementation of response to intervention strategies. 

 
In the, "Return to School Roadmap: Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act," OSEP encourages districts to reexamine the efficacy of existing child find 
practices and initiate new activities in light of the educational disruptions caused by the COVID-
19 pandemic, including through additional screenings; efforts to increase awareness about special 
education supports and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on students' academic performance 
and social-emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs; public awareness campaigns about 
developmental screenings in settings frequented by families such as health departments, physician's 
offices, public parks, amusement parks, shopping malls, and children's stores; social media 
campaigns on multiple online platforms; partnering with stakeholders such as parent-teacher 
organizations; and holding screening events in the community. 

 
Additionally, OSEP emphasizes that students who are experiencing long-term COVID-19 effects 
must be referred for special education evaluation if their symptoms (such as fatigue, mood changes, 
or difficulty concentrating) are adversely impacting their ability to participate and learn in the 
general curriculum. 

 
The obligation of a district to refer a student for special education evaluation is a fact-specific 
determination that must be made on a case-by-case basis. 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's child find process includes the collection of 
data and, at reasonable intervals, the screening of such data to determine if students are making adequate 
progress, as appropriate. 
 
A student shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of the 
regular education program have been considered and used where appropriate.  (Education Code 56303) 
 
However, the district shall ensure that evaluations of children suspected of having a disability are not 
delayed or denied because of the implementation of response to intervention strategies. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 34 CFR 300.301, a parent/guardian or district may request an initial 
evaluation to determine if a student is a student with a disability. OSEP Memorandum 11-07 
emphasizes that if a parent/guardian requests an evaluation, and the district agrees with the 
parent/guardian that the student may be eligible for special education and related services, the 
district must evaluate the child. If the district does not suspect that the child has a disability and 
denies the request for an initial evaluation, the district must provide written notice to the 
parent/guardian, pursuant to 34 CFR 300.503, explaining the basis for such decision. 
 

A parent/guardian or the district may initiate a request for an initial evaluation to determine if the 
student is a student with a disability.  (34 CFR 300.301) 
 
When a verbal referral is made, staff shall offer assistance to the individual to make the request in writing 
and shall assist the individual if the individual requests such assistance.  (5 CCR 3021) 
 
All referrals from school staff for an initial evaluation shall include a brief reason for the referral and 



Page 2 of 10 

 

description of the regular program resources that were considered and/or modified for use with the 
student and, when appropriate, the results of intervention.  This documentation shall not delay the 
timelines for completing the assessment plan or assessment.  (5 CCR 3021) 
 
Initial Evaluation for Special Education Services 
 
Before the initial provision of special education and related services to a student with a disability, the 
district shall conduct a full andan individual initial evaluation of the student.  student's educational needs 
related to all areas of suspected disability. (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.301) 
 
Upon receipt of a referral of any student for special education and related services, a proposed evaluation 
plan shall be developed within 15 calendar days, not counting days between the student's regular 
school sessions or terms or calendar days of school vacation in excess of five school days, unless the 
parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an extension.  If the referral is made within 10 days or less prior 
to the end of the student's regular school year or term, the proposed evaluation plan shall be developed 
within 10 days after the beginning of the next regular school year or term.  (Education Code 56043, 
56321) 
 
The proposed evaluation plan shall meet all of the following requirements:  (Education Code 56321) 
 

1. Be in a language easily understood by the general public 
 

2. Be provided in the native language of the parent/guardian or other mode of communication used 
by the parent/guardian unless it is clearly not feasible 

 
3. Explain the types of evaluation to be conducted 

 
4. State that no individualized education program (IEP) will result from the evaluation without 

parent/guardian consent 
 
A copy of the notice of a parent/guardian's rights and procedural safeguards shall be attached to the 
evaluation plan.  (Education Code 56321) 
 
The proposed written evaluation plan shall include a description of recent assessments conducted, 
including available independent assessments and assessment information requested by the parent/guardian 
to be considered, as well as information indicating the student's primary language and the student's 
primary language proficiency as determined by Education Code section 52164.1.  (5 CCR 3022) 
 

CSBA NOTE: 34 CFR 300.504 requires the district to provide parents/guardians with written 
notice prior to conducting the initial evaluation. For contents of the prior written notice, see AR 
6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education. 

 
Education Code 56329 clarifies the factors to consider when making a determination of eligibility, 
reflected in Item #2 below and specifies circumstances in which a parent/guardian may be 
entitled to an independent educational evaluation (IEE), reflected in Items #4 and 5 below. 
 

Before conducting an initial evaluation, the district shall provide the parent/guardian with prior 
written notice in accordance with 34 CFR 300.503.  In addition, as part of the evaluation plan, the 
parent/guardian shall receive written notice that includes all of the following information:  (Education 
Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.304, 300.502, 300.504) 
 

1. Upon completion of the administration of tests and other evaluation materials, an IEP team 
meeting that includes the parent/guardian or the parent/guardian's representative shall be 
scheduled pursuant to Education Code 56341. At this meeting, the team shall determine 
whether or not the student is a student with disabilities, as defined in Education Code 56026, 
and shall discuss the evaluation, the educational recommendations, and the reasons for the 



Page 3 of 10 

 

recommendations. 
 

2. When making a determination of eligibility for special education, the district shall not 
determine that the student is disabled if the primary factor for such determination is lack of 
appropriate instruction in reading, including the essential components of reading 
instruction as defined in 20 USC 6368, lack of appropriate instruction in mathematics, or 
limited English proficiency, if the student does not otherwise meet the eligibility criteria 
under 34 CFR 300.8. 

 
3. A copy of the evaluation report and the documentation of determination of eligibility 

shall be given to the parent/guardian. 
 

4. If the parent/guardian disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the district, the 
parent/guardian has the right to obtain, at public expense, an independent educational 
evaluation (IEE) of the student from qualified specialists, in accordance with 34 CFR 
300.502. The parent/guardian is entitled to only one such evaluation at public expense each 
time the district conducts an assessment with which the parent/guardian disagrees. 

 
If the district observed the student in conducting its evaluation, or if its evaluation 
procedures make it permissible to have in-class observation of the student, an equivalent 
opportunity shall apply to the IEE. This equivalent opportunity shall apply to the student's 
current placement and setting as well as observation of the district's proposed placement and 
setting, if any, regardless of whether the IEE is initiated before or after the filing of a due 
process hearing proceeding. 

 
5. The district may initiate a due process hearing pursuant to Education Code 56500-56508 

to show that its evaluation is appropriate. If the final decision resulting from the due process 
hearing is that the evaluation is appropriate, the parent/guardian maintains the right for an 
IEE, but not at public expense. 

 
If the parent/guardian obtains an IEE at private expense, the results of the IEE shall be 
considered by the district with respect to the provision of a free appropriate public education 
(FAPE) to the student, and may be presented as evidence at a due process hearing regarding 
the student. If the district observed the student in conducting its evaluation, or if its 
evaluation procedures make it permissible to have in-class observation of a student, an 
equivalent opportunity shall apply to an IEE of the student in the student's current 
educational placement and setting and in any educational placement and setting proposed 
by the district, regardless of whether the IEE is initiated before or after the filing of a due 
process hearing. 

 
6. If the parent/guardian proposes a publicly financed placement of the student in a nonpublic 

school, the district shall have an opportunity to observe the proposed placement and, if the 
student has already been unilaterally placed in the nonpublic school by the student's 
parent/guardian, the student in that proposed placement. Any such observation shall only be 
of the student who is the subject of the observation and shall not include the observation or 
evaluation of any other student in the proposed placement unless that other student's 
parent/guardian consents to the observation or evaluation. The results of any observation or 
evaluation of another student in violation of Education Code 56329(d) shall be inadmissible 
in any due process or judicial proceeding regarding FAPE of that other student. 
 
Parent/Guardian Consent for Evaluations 
 
Upon receiving the proposed evaluation plan, the parent/guardian shall have at least 15 days to 
decide whether to consent to the initial evaluation.  The district shall not interpret 
parent/guardian consent for initial evaluation as consent for initial placement or initial 
provision of special education services.  (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300) 

 



Page 4 of 10 

 

Parent/Guardian Consent for Evaluations 
 
CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56321 and 34 CFR 300.300, the district must first 
obtain parent/guardian consent before conducting (1) an initial evaluation to determine if the 
student is a student with a disability or (2) a reevaluation to determine if the student continues to 
be a student with a disability. See AR 6159 - Individualized Education Program for language 
regarding parent/guardian consent for the provision of special education services, including the 
right to revoke such consent. 

 
In M.M. v. Lafayette School District, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals concluded that the 
district had a procedural duty to provide the parents with their child's response to instruction 
(RTI) data when the district sought to obtain their consent for the initial evaluation. The 
district's failure to provide the parents with the RTI data as part of the initial evaluation resulted 
not only in a procedural violation but also a substantive violation of the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) since the failure prevented the parents from meaningfully 
participating in the IEP process. 
 

Informed parentalConsent means that the parent/guardian:  (Education Code 56021.1; 34 CFR 300.9) 
 

1. Has been fully informed, in the parent/guardian's native language or other mode of 
communication, of all information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought 

 
2. Understands and agrees, in writing, to the carrying out of the activity for which 

parent/guardian consent is sought and the consent describes that activity and lists the records (if 
any) that will be released and to whom 

 
3. Understands that the granting of consent is voluntary on the parent/guardian's part and may be 

revoked at any time 
 

4. Understands that if the parent/guardian revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive (i.e., 
it does not negate an action that has occurred after the consent was given and before the consent 
was revoked). The district is not required to amend the education records of a student to 
remove any reference to the student's receipt of special education and services if the student's 
parent/guardian submits a written revocation of consent after the initial provision of special 
education and related services to the student. 

 
Upon receiving the proposed evaluation plan, the parent/guardian shall have at least 15 days to decide 
whether to consent to the initial evaluation. The district shall not interpret parent/guardian consent for 
initial evaluation as consent for initial placement or initial provision of special education services.  
(Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 
The district shall make reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent of the parent/guardian for an 
initial evaluation or reevaluation of a student.  (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.322) 
 

CSBA NOTE: It is recommended that the district maintain a record of its attempts to obtain 
consent, as provided in Items #1-3 below. 
 

The district shall maintain a record of its attempts to obtain consent, such as: (Education Code 56341.5) 
 

1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls 
 

2. Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received 
 

3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian's home or place of employment and the 
results of those visits 



Page 5 of 10 

 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 56321 and 34 CFR 300.300 provide that if a parent/guardian 
refuses to consent to an evaluation, the district may, but is not required to, utilize the due process 
procedures to pursue the evaluation. However, if the district declines to pursue the evaluation, 
the district does not violate its child find obligations under state and federal law. 
 

If a parent/guardian refuses to consent to the initial evaluation or fails to respond to a request to 
provide consent, the district may, but is not required to, pursue an evaluation by utilizing the 
procedural safeguards, including the mediation and due process procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415 
and 34 CFR 300.506-300.516.  (Education Code 56321; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 
For a student who is a ward of the state and not residing with the student's parent/guardian, the district 
shall make reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent from the parent/guardian of the student 
for an initial evaluation to determine whether the student is a student with a disability.  The district 
may conduct an initial evaluation without obtaining informed consent if any of the following 
situations exists:  (Education Code 56321.1; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 

1. Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the district cannot discover the whereabouts of the 
parent/guardian of the student 

 
2. The rights of the parent/guardian of the student have been terminated in accordance with state 

law 
 

3. The rights of the parent/guardian to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a 
judge in accordance with state law and consent for an initial evaluation has been given by an 
individual appointed by the judge to represent the student 

 
The district need not obtain parent/guardian consent before reviewing existing data as part of an 
evaluation or reevaluation, or before administering a test or other evaluation that is administered to all 
students, unless consent is required from the parents/guardians of all students.  (Education Code 
56321; 34 CFR 300.300) 
 
Conduct of the Evaluation 
 
Within 60 calendar days of receiving parental consent for the initial assessment of a student, not 
counting days between the student's regular school sessions, terms, or days of school vacation in excess 
of five schooldays, a determination whether the student is eligible for special education and the 
educational needs of the student shall be made, an IEP team meeting shall occur, and an IEP shall be 
developed, unless the parent/guardian agrees in writing to an extension, pursuant to Education Code 
56344.  If the 60-day time is interrupted by a student school vacation, the 60-day time shall 
recommence on the date that student schooldays reconvene and a meeting to develop an IEP for the 
student shall be conducted within 30 days of a determination that the student needs special education 
and related services.  (Education Code 56043, 56344) 
 
However, when a referral has been made for a student 30 days or less prior to the end of the regular 
school year, an IEP required as a result of an assessment of the student shall be developed within 30 days 
after the commencement of the subsequent regular school year.  (Education Code 56043, 56344; 34 CFR 
300.301, 300.323) 
 
The evaluation shall be conducted by qualified personnel who are competent to perform the assessment as 
determined by the district.  (Education Code 56320, 56322) 
 
In addition, evaluations and reevaluations shall be administered by qualified personnel who are competent 
in the oral or sign language skills and written skills of the student's primary language or mode of 
communication and have a knowledge and understanding of the cultural and ethnic background of the 
student.  If it is clearly not feasible to do so, an interpreter shall be used, and the assessment report shall 
document this condition and note that the validity of the assessment may have been affected.  The normal 
process of second-language acquisition, as well as manifestations of dialect and sociolinguistic variance 



Page 6 of 10 

 

shall not be diagnosed as a disabling condition.  (5 CCR 3023) 
 
The screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional strategies for 
curriculum implementation shall not be considered to be an evaluation for eligibility for special education 
and related services.  (Education Code 56321; 20 USC 1414; 34 CFR 300.302) 
 
In conducting the evaluation, the district shall use a variety of assessment tools and strategies to gather 
relevant functional, developmental, and academic information about the student.  The district shall 
also use any information provided by the parent/guardian that may assist the district in making the 
determination as to whether the student is a student with a disability and, if so, the necessary 
components of the student's IEP when the IEP is developed, including information related to enabling 
the student to be involved in and to progress in the general education curriculum.  (34 CFR 300.304) 
 
The district's evaluation shall not use any single measure or assessment as the sole criterion for 
determining whether a student is a student with a disability and for determining the appropriate 
educational program for the student. The assessment shall use technically sound instruments that may 
assess the relative contribution of cognitive and behavioral factors in addition to physical or 
developmental factors.  ((Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.304) 
 
The district shall also ensure that assessments and other evaluation materials provide relevant information 
that assists in determining the student's educational needs and are:  (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 
300.304) 
 

1. Selected and administered so as not to be discriminatory on a racial, cultural, or sexual basis 
 

2. Provided and administered in the student's native language or other mode of communication and in 
the form most likely to yield accurate information on what the student knows and can do 
academically, developmentally, and functionally, unless it is clearly not feasible to so provide or 
administer 

 
3. Used for the purposes for which the assessments or measures are valid and reliable 

 
4. Administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel except that individually administered tests 

of intellectual or emotional functioning shall be administered by a credentialed school 
psychologist 

 
5. Administered in accordance with any instructions provided by the producer of the assessments 

 
6. Tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and not merely designed to provide a single 

general intelligence quotient 
 

7. If administered to a student with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, selected and 
administered to best ensure that the results accurately reflect the student's aptitude or 
achievement level or whatever other factors the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting 
the child's impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills (unless those skills are the factors that the 
test purports to measure). 

 
Students shall be assessed in all areas related to the suspected disability, including, if appropriate, health 
and development, vision (including low vision), hearing, motor abilities, language function, general 
intelligence, academic performance, communicative status, self-help, orientation and mobility skills, 
career and vocational abilities and interests, and social and emotional status.  When appropriate, a 
developmental history shall be obtained.  For students with residual vision, a low vision assessment 
shall be provided in accordance with guidelines established pursuant to Education Code 56136.  The 
district shall ensure that the evaluation is sufficiently comprehensive to identify all of the student's 
special education and related service needs, whether or not commonly linked to the disability 
category in which the student has been classified.  (Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.304) 
 



Page 7 of 10 

 

As part of the initial evaluation and any reevaluation, the IEP team and other qualified professionals 
shall, if appropriate, review existing evaluation data on the student, including evaluations and information 
provided by the parents/guardians, current classroom-based local or state assessments and classroom-
based observations, and observations by teachers and related services providers.  On the basis of that 
review and input from the student's parent/guardian, the team shall identify what additional data, if 
any, are needed to determine:  (Education Code 56381; 34 CFR 300.305) 

 
1. Whether the student is a student with a disability, or in the case of a reevaluation, whether the 

student continues to have a disability, and the educational needs of the student 
 

2. The present levels of academic achievement and related developmental needs of the student 
 

3. Whether the student needs, or continues to need, special education and related services 
 

4. Whether any additions or modifications to the special education and related services are needed to 
enable the student to meet the measurable annual goals set out in the student's IEP and to 
participate, as appropriate, in the general education curriculum 

 
If a student has transferred from another district in the same school year or leaves this district, the 
district shall coordinate with the student's prior or subsequent district as necessary and as expeditiously as 
possible to ensure prompt completion of full evaluations.  ((Education Code 56320; 34 CFR 300.304) 
 
Evaluation Report 
 
The personnel who evaluate the student shall prepare a written report of the results of each 
evaluation.  The report shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  (Education Code 56327) 

 
1. Whether the student may need special education and related services 

 
2. The basis for making the determination 

 
3. The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the student in an appropriate setting 

 
4. The relationship of that behavior to the student's academic and social functioning 

 
5. The educationally relevant health, developmental, and medical findings, if any 

 
6. For students with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between achievement 

and ability that it cannot be corrected without special education and related services 
 

7. A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage, 
where appropriate 

 
8. The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for students with low incidence 

disabilities, consistent with Education Code 56136 
 
Eligibility Determination 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following section contains procedures for determining a student's eligibility 
for special education and related services. Education Code 56334-56338 and 34 CFR 300.307-
300.311 provide additional procedures for conducting the evaluation and making the 
determination for eligibility of a student with specific learning disabilities. 
 

Upon completion of the administration of assessments and other evaluation measures, a group of qualified 
professionals and the parent/guardian shall determine whether the student is a student with a disability as 
defined in 5 CCR 3030 and 34 CFR 300.8 and, if so, the student's educational needs. In interpreting the 



Page 8 of 10 

 

data, the group shall draw information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement 
tests, parent/guardian input, and teacher recommendations, as well as information about the student's 
physical condition, social or cultural background, and adaptive behavior.  The group shall ensure that the 
information obtained from these sources is documented and carefully considered.  (34 CFR 300.306) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 56329 requires districts to provide notice about specific factors in 
making the determination of eligibility as part of the district's evaluation plan. See section above 
entitled "Initial Evaluation for Special Education Services." 
 

When making a determination of eligibility for special education and related services, the district shall not 
determine that a student is disabled if the primary factor for such determination is a lack of appropriate 
instruction in reading, including the essential components of reading instruction pursuant to 20 USC 
6368, lack of instruction in mathematics, limited English proficiency, or that the student does not 
otherwise meet the eligibility criteria.  (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.306) 
 
The normal process of second-language acquisition, as well as manifestations of dialect and 
sociolinguistic variance, shall not be diagnosed as a disabling condition.  (5 CCR 3023) 
 
Independent Educational Evaluation 
 

CSBA NOTE: 34 CFR 300.502 requires the district to provide parents/guardians, upon request 
for an IEE, information about where an IEE may be obtained and the district's criteria for the 
evaluation, including the location of the evaluation, qualifications of the examiner, and timelines 
for obtaining the evaluation. These criteria must be the same as the criteria that the district uses 
for district-initiated evaluations. In addition, Education Code 56329 requires districts to 
provide notice about parent/guardian rights to an IEE as part of the proposed evaluation plan; 
see section above entitled "Initial Evaluation for Special Education Services." Districts may 
wish to modify the following section to include specific criteria developed by the district or 
special education local plan area, as appropriate. 
 

An independent educational evaluation is defined as an evaluation conducted by a qualified examiner who 
is not employed by the district.  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 
Public expense means that the district either pays for the full cost of the IEE or ensures that the 
evaluation is otherwise provided at no cost to the parent/guardian.  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 
The parents/guardians of a student with a disability have the right to obtain an IEE at public expense 
under the same criteria, including the location of the evaluation and the qualifications of the examiner, 
that the district uses for a district-initiated evaluation.  (34 CFR 300.502) 
 
The parent/guardian is entitled to only one IEE at public expense each time the district conducts an 
evaluation with which the parent/guardian disagrees.  (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502) 
 
If a parent/guardian has requested an IEE, the district may ask for the reason that the parent/guardian 
objects to the district's evaluation.  However, the parent/guardian is not required to provide an 
explanation and the district may not unreasonably delay either providing the IEE at public expense or 
filing a due process complaint to request a due process hearing to defend the public evaluation.  (34 
CFR 300.502) 
 
Upon receiving the request for an IEE, the district shall, without unnecessary delay, either:  (34 CFR 
300.502) 
 

1. File a due process complaint to request a hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate 
 

2. Ensure that an IEE is provided at public expense, unless the district demonstrates at a hearing that 
the evaluation obtained by the parent/guardian did not satisfy the district's criteria 

 



Page 9 of 10 

 

If a due process hearing decision determines that the district's evaluation is appropriate, then the 
parent/guardian may obtain an IEE but not at public expense.  (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 
300.502) 
 
In any decision made with respect to providing FAPE to a student with a disability, the result of any IEE 
obtained by the student's parent/guardian shall be considered by the district if it meets district 
criteria.  Any such result also may be presented as evidence at a hearing on a due process 
complaint.  (Education Code 56329; 34 CFR 300.502) 
 
Coordinating Transitions 
 

CSBA NOTE: Government Code 95008, as amended by SB 188 (Ch. 49, Statutes of 2022), 
requires each district to designate a main point of contact for coordinating and completing, with 
other agencies and persons, the transition of a child and family from infant/toddler programs to 
preschool (Part C to Part B of IDEA), including establishing practices to educate and support 
families during the transition. 
 

The district designates the individual listed below as the main point of contact for coordinating and 
completing, with other agencies and persons, the transition of a child and family from infant/toddler 
programs to preschool (Part C to Part B of the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act), 
including establishing practices to educate and support families during the transition: 
(Government Code 95008) 
 

 
(title or position) 
 

 
(address) 
 

 
(telephone number) 
 

 
(email) 
 
Reevaluation 
 
A reevaluation shall be conducted when the district determines that the educational or related service 
needs of the student, including improved academic achievement and functional performance, warrant 
a reevaluation or if the student's parent/guardian or teacher requests reevaluation.  Such reevaluations 
shall occur every three years, unless the parent/guardian and district agree in writing that a reevaluation 
is unnecessary.  A reevaluation may not occur more than once a year, unless the parent/guardian and the 
district agree otherwise.  (Education Code 56043, 56381; 34 CFR 300.303) 
 
The district shall ensure that any reevaluations of the student are conducted in accordance with the 
evaluation procedures pursuant to 34 CFR 300.304-300.311.  (34 CFR 300.303) 
 
Before entering kindergarten or first grade, as the case may be, children with disabilities who are in a 
preschool program shall be reevaluated to determine if they still need special education and 
services.  IEP teams shall identify a means of monitoring the continued success of children who are 
determined to be eligible for less intensive special education programs. (Education Code 56445) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The district's point of contact, identified pursuant to Government Code 95008, as 
amended by SB 188, for coordinating and completing the transition of a child and family from 
infant/toddler programs to preschool, may coordinate the reevaluation of children with 
disabilities who are in a preschool program and the progress of children who are determined to be 
eligible for less intensive special education programs, as described below. 



Page 10 of 10 

 

 
The district's point of contact for coordinating and completing the transition of a child and family 
from infant/toddler programs to preschool, may coordinate the reevaluation and monitoring as described 
above for kindergarten or first grade. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 14, 2011 
revised: December 13, 2021 
revised: February 14, 2023 


	Policy Packet_02-14-2023.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


